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The Prince’s Foundation
Trustees' report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Chair's statement

With the very sad news of the passing of Her Majesty Queen Elizabeth li, we share the nation’s profound sorrow
and our thoughts are with our President, His Majesty The King, and the Royal Family at this time. :

In line with His Majesty’s wishes, the Trustees, the executive team and colleagues are committed to pursuing
and delivering the King’s vision and aspirations for The Prince’s Foundation and all who benefit from our work.

The Foundation has achieved a great deal in the year to 31 March 2022, against a challenging macroeconomic
and geo-political backdrop.

The beginning of our financial year saw the refaxing of Covid-19 restrictions, and we were able to re-open our
sites across the UK in accordance with government guidelines. This included the re-opening of our café and bed
and breakfast facilities at Dumfries House and The Queen Elizabeth Castle of Mey Trust, as well as public tours
of Dumfries House and the Castle of Mey, all in a Covid-secure manner. The emergence of new variants towards
the end of 2021 meant that the charity had to be flexible and responsive to a fast-changing situation, including
the re-introduction of restrictions in response 1o the Omicron variant. Since then, we have seen restrictions ease
once more, largely due 1o the success of the vaccination programme and the wider public health response.

Throughout this period, our colleagues and volunteers have worked tirelessly to ensure the work of The Prince’s
Foundation has continued as far as possible, within government guidelines, including the delivery of our
Education programmes, our outreach work, local community initiatives, and keeping our estate properties open
to the public. It is through the determination of our hard-working colleagues and volunteers that we have been
able to maintain a regular programme of delivery of our charitable objectives throughout the pandemic. On
behalf of the Board, | would like to thank them warmly for everything they have done, and continue to do.

These recent and current challenges have been compounded by the rising cost of living, which is making life
difficult for many. It seems very likely that inflation will continue to increase in the short term, putting further
pressure on household and organisations’ budgets.

Against this backdrop, and never more so than now, the work of our charity is critical in providing opportunities
for our beneficiaries, students, members of the community and the visiting public and also supporting the
livelihoods of those who work for us,

General admission to the Dumfries House estate continues to be free of charge. The Dumfries House Health and
Wellbeing centre works closely with local health care providers and runs a range of well-being services to local
residents. These programmes are offered free of charge to the participants.

The Foundation’s education offering at Dumfries House delivers heavily subsidised, and in many cases free,
programmes for students and local schools. Students are able to take up activities in Science, Technology,
Engineering and Mathematics (STEM), craft skills, outdoor education, food, farming and horticulture affording
them both experience and learning opportunities.

In addition, we offer subsidised and, in some cases, fully funded places on our Diploma Year course at Trinity
Bucy Wharf for students to explore their artistic talents. At The Prince’s Foundation Schoo! of Traditional Arts,
we offer financial support and bursaries to students progressing MA and PhD level qualifications.

We continue to invest in our facilities across all sites to enhance the visitor experience and to expand our
education offering. At Dumfries House we developed a new free-to-use adventure playpark, extending the
existing playground to incorporate treetop walks. We also completed the construction of Coachford cottage and
the Printmaking studio to support educational delivery on the Dumfries House estate.

At the Castle of Mey, we completed the refurbishment of the Visitors’ Centre and the Captain’s House to improve
the visitor experience.

The Prince’s Foundation School of Traditional Arts benefited from significant investment in the student facilities
at Charlotte Road, London. At Trinity Buoy Wharf, the Foundation expanded its education offering by delivering
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the Diploma Year course, and entered into a lease of new facilities at the Electrician’s workshop including the
refurbishment and kit out of a new darkroom and textiles studio.

As world leaders gathered at COP-26 in Glasgow in November, we continued to promote and demonstrate the

- importance of planning for sustainable growth of secondary cities in the Commonwealth, to address the global
challenges of rapid urbanisation and climate change. We also launched our Building a Legacy for Landowners’
educational programme and published a report with the new Global Centre on Healthcare and Urbanisation at
Kellogg College, Oxford, into the evidence base for walkable, accessible and healthy neighbourhoods.

At Highgrove, Gloucestershire, the Foundation took on responsibility for the Highgrove Gardens in order to
ensure they continue to be appreciated by the visiting public, in support of the Foundation’s charitable
endeavours, and the Highgrove trading arm which will generate an annual income for the charity. We are also
investing in new education facilities at Highgrove to deliver textiles and craft skills to the local community and
further afield.

The charitable outcomes outlined above would not have been possible without the generosity of our donors.
The delivery of cur charitable objects, inspired by the vision of our President, is reliant on donations and, on
behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere thanks to all of our supporters for their philanthropy.

Buring the year, the Foundation was the subject of a number of press reports into alleged historic fundraising
practices. The Board agreed unequivocally that the allegations had to be independently investigated and
launched an investigation. Following receipt of the findings of the investigation the Board has been considering
them, as has the Office of the Scottish Charity Regulator (OSCR) and other relevant parties. Trustees are also
aware that the Metropolitan Police are conducting an investigation into allegations of offences under the
Honours (Prevention of Abuses) Act 1925. As a result of the independent investigation, the Board of Trustees
undertook a thorough review of the charity's governance and significant action has been taken in response,
Trustees are determined that lessons will be learned to ensure that our charity maintains the highest standards
in all areas and always acts with the utmost integrity and probity.

| reported last year on changes to our Board composition and, subsequent to that update, we have welcomed
two new Trustees to our Board, namely Ewan Venters and Sandy Manson. | would like to weicome our new
Trustees, the details of whom can be found in the enclosed report. | would also like to take this opportunity to
thank my fellow Board members for their valuable contributions and commitment during the past year. Ashe
Windharmn retired from the Board in March 2022 and | thank him for his dedicated service.

While the exceptionally challenging sccio-economic climate is likely to continue for some time, our Trustees,
colleagues and volunteers are resolutely committed to delivering our charitable goals to make a positive
difference to our beneficiaries and communities.

%Mt

Dame Susan Bruce
Chair
The Prince's Foundation
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Strategic Report for the year ended 31 March 2022

Review of the Charity

The Prince’s Foundation, of which His Majesty, King Charles Ili, is President, was formed on 1 April 2018 through
the merger of The Great Steward of Scotland’s Dumfries House Trust with The Prince’s Foundation for Building
Community. During the year to 31 March 2019, The Prince’s Foundation merged with The Prince’s School of
Traditional Arts, in September 2018, and became sole Trustee of ancther of The Prince’s charities, The Gueen
Elizabeth Castle of Mey Trust, on 1 January 2019,

During the year ended 31 March 2022 the Foundation continued to deliver on its charitable objectives despite
the ongoing effects of the pandemic particularly at the beginning of the financial year. A number of capital
projects progressed at both the Dumfries House estate, the Highgrove estate and at the Castle of Mey, as set
out on page 11.

The Foundation continued to deliver its broad education programme at Dumfries House, Trinity Buoy Wharf and
at the School of Traditional Arts in London. During the year, the Foundation progressed its plans to expand its
education offering by acquiring two buildings in Highgrove, Gloucestershire. Details of all education activities
can be found on pages 12 to 17. The Foundation’s Architecture and Heritage work continued to thrive, both in
the UK and internationally, further information on which is set out on page 17. All of this has been achieved at
the same time as the charity bolstered its balance sheet and cash reserves and has reported positive free group
reserves for the second year in a row. Please refer to pages 18 and 19 for the financial review of the year and
our reserves assessment.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Trustees are required to assess the major risks to which the Foundation is exposed. The Trustees have
examined the major strategic, business and operational risks which the Foundation faces, and are satisfied that
approgriate systems have been established to seek to identify and manage these risks. It is recognised that
systems can only provide reasonable, but not absclute, assurance that major risks have been adequately
managed.

The principal risk for the charity is failure to meet fundraising targets leading to the charity not having sufficient
funds to achieve its objectives. This is monitored by management and Trustees atregular intervals. Management
information tools including monthly management accounts including finance and fundraising reconciliations,
budget setting and tracking, and cash flow forecasts are used to oversee and manage current and future
liquidity. The charity’s fundraising requirements are a key input to these reports.

During the financial year the fFoundation was the subject of a number of press reports into historic fundraising
practices at The Prince’s Foundation. The Trustees asked their legal advisors to commission an independent
investigation into the press reports. The Trustees and OSCR received the findings arising from that investigation
in November 2021 and subsequently the Trustees commissioned and reviewed legal advice on the findings of
the report.

The risks highlighted and considered include the potential for legal, regulatory, employee and reputational risks.
The Trustees accept the reputational risk arising from these events as probable and note the possible risk of
both legal and regulatory liability outcomes. The timing and amount of any economic outflows are uncertain at
this time. Trustees are also aware that the Metropolitan Police are conducting an anvestlgahon into allegatlons
of offences under the Honours (Prevention of Abuses) Act 1925 and this has been considered within the legal
advice outlined above.
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Strategic Report for the year ended 31 March 2022 (continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties {continued)

The Trustees are satisfied, based on the work professionally commissioned and the internal enquiries carried
out to the date of approval of the financial statements, that there is no evidence of endermnic or systematic
breakdown within the operating control environment of the Foundation. The Trustees also accept that it remains
possible that historic transactions could result in ongoing contingent risk to the Foundation.

Section 172 Statement, Employee Engagement and Business Relationships

This statement is included to meet the requirements of the Companies {(Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations
2018.

Consequences of long-term decisions

Trustees and management actively consider the long-term implications of all significant decisions made by the
charity. Performance is monitored via departmental reporting and monthly management accounts to ensure
that operations are meeting their objectives. Long term cashflow projections and budgets are reviewed on a
regular basis by the committees described on pages & and 7, to make sure that the Foundation is financially
sustainable to deliver its future plans as set out on page 19.

Impact on the community and environment

Promotion and development of the local and wider community is inherent in all activities of The Prince's
Foundation. As described in the Foundation's objectives on page 9, the charity exists to improve the conditions
of life for persons in need and te promote community development. Thisis evidenced throughout the Trustees'
report which describes the numerous successful activities undertaken in the year. The Foundation is conscious
of its influence and impact on the environment. It strives to ensure that it leads by example, particularly in its
promotion of the protection, preservation and conservation of architectural heritage, artefacts and estates itis
entrusted to safeguard.

Business relationships with suppliers, customers and others

We have continued to support our suppliers and third-party contractors by ensuring timely payments and active
communication. Where customers have been unable to utilise their bookings or gift vouchers, due to the
pandemic, The Prince’s Foundation has offered refunds, extensions or the flexibility to change the date of an
event. Community events were limited by Covid-19 restrictions, particularly at the beginning of the financial
year, and consequently the Foundation has continued its online offerings such as classes from our Health and
Wellbeing centre. Once restrictions began to ease, and where safe to do so, we re-commenced on-site and in-
person engagement with our suppliers, customers and the community.

Employee engagement

The onset of the Covid-19 pandemic resulted in new ways of warking for most of our colleagues. Many of our
colleagues worked from home in response to the lockdown measures announced by government. The
Foundation takes its responsibilities towards the health and wellbeing of staff very seriously and we were vigilant
in applying the safety measures advised by government and to implement restrictions. During the strictest
lockdown periods, we closed our sites across the UK and all members of staff moved to home working.

As lock-down measures began to ease, all colleagues were invited to share their views regarding our re-opening
plans as part of an online survey. Feedback from the survey was reviewed by management and as a result we
began a phased return to working cn site.
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Strategic Report for the year ended 31 March 2022 {continued)
Section 172 Statement, Employee Engagement and Business Relationships {continued)

Where possible staff are being offered a flexible work pattern where they have the option of working from home
for up to two days per week. We continue to encourage the use of virtual meetings, placing emphasis on the
need for teams to keep in touch and the management team issue regular all-staff communications to keep
colleagues informed of updates.

High standards of business conduct

We are regulated by the Office of the Scottish Charity Reguiator {(QSCR} and the Office For Students (OfS) and
maintain an internal governance structure designed to ensure effective oversight of all operational and financial
matters. We strive to maintain the highest levels of business conduct and, during the financial year, the Trustees
of The Prince's Foundation launched a robust and detailed governance review, in line with the Charity
Governance Code. We continually review our control environment and make improvements as required.

The need to act fairly as between members of the company

All members as defined in our Structure, Governance and Management statement on pages 20 and 21 are given
equal consideration. Regular communications are made to all members in a timely and efficient manner without
prejudice, Terms of reference exist for our Board and its various Committees.

Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control

This statement is included to meet the requirements of the Office for Students regulatory advice 9: accounts
direction 2019.41.

Transparency, adequacy and effectiveness of corporate governance and risk management arrangements,
including compliance with statutory and regulatory responsibilities

The Prince’s Foundation is regulated by the Office of the Scottish Charities Regulator {OSCR) as its principal
regulator and, additionally, by the Office for Students (OfS). The OFS requires disclosures to be made in the
published financial statements of its providers, including this statement of corporate governance and internal
control and the disclosures set out in note 22 to the accounts. This is supplementary to the requirements of FRS
102 and the Charities Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP).

This statement of corporate goevernance and internal control provides an overview of the governance at The
Prince’s Foundation, including the internal control arrangements and processes by which we manage risk,

Our charitable cbjects and powers are set out in our Articles of Association, which are available publicly at
Companies House {company number 5C331738). Qur Articles set out the membership of our governing body,
being our Board of Trustees, including voting powers and the rules for meetings and appointments to the Board.

The Prince’s Foundation is committed to exhibiting best practice in all aspects of our corporate governance.
Good corporate governance and internal contrel enables and supports a charity's compliance with the law and
relevant regulations and underpins a culture where colleagues work towards fulfilling the charity’s objects.

The Charity Governance Code (the ‘Code’) represents a standard of good governance practice to which all
charities should aspire. The code includes seven principles — leadership; integrity; decision making, risk and
control; board effectiveness; equality, diversity and inclusion; and openness and accountability.

Page 5



The Prince’s Foundation
Trustees' report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Strategic Report for the year ended 31 March 2022 (continued)
Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control {continued)

Transparency, adequacy and effectiveness of corporate governance and risk management arrangements,
including compliance with statutory and regulatory responsibilities {continued)

Although the code is voluntary, during the financial year to 31 March 2022 the Trustees of the Prince’s
Foundation reviewed the corporate governance arrangements of the Foundation and developed a plan to follow
the code’s best practice recommendations. The Board is committed to regular review of the adequacy and
effectiveness of our corporate governance arrangements and receives regular updates on progress.

The Board and its Committees also receive updates on statutory and regulatory compliance matters, in addition
to updates on restricted funds as part of the monthly management accounts process.

With respect to funding arrangements, The Prince’s Foundation does not receive public funding from the OfS,
UK Research and innovation (KR!, including Research England}, the Department for Education or the Education
and Skilis Funding Agency.

Corporate govermance structures

The Board of Trustees

The Board of Trustees comprises persons appointed under the charity's Articles of Association. The Articles
govern the membership of the Board of Trustees, including its voting powers. The charity currently has 9
Trustees, the biographies of whom are set out on pages 21 — 25 below. All new Trustees are provided with
training and induction materials including a finance orientation session.

The Board of Trustees sets and oversees the strategic direction of the Foundation {Group) and is responsible for
all policy decisions. The Board of Trustees of The Prince’s Foundation meets formally at least four times each
year.

The Prince’s Foundation maintains a register of interests of members of the Board to allow the charity to monitor
any conflicts of interest, to ensure the correct statutory declarations are made and that any authorisations are
put in place as necessary. The Board confirms the status of any conflicts of interest at the beginning of each
meeting.

The Board of Trustees delegates authority to a number of Board Committees, which operate at Group level as
part of the governance structure of the Foundation. These Committees derive their scope, membership and
powers from their Terms of Reference.

An overview of each of the Board Committees is set out below.

Policy and Resources Committee (‘PARC’)

The first meeting of PARC was held on 27 July 2021. PARC was previously the Finance, Investment and Audit
Committee (FIAC); the responsibilities of FIAC were split between PARC and a newly created Audit and Risk
Committee (AARC) during the financial year.

PARC oversees the day-to-day financial and operational management of the Foundation, including the effective
use of the Foundation's resources, adherence to policies and procedures, and monitoring and reporting.

PARC also undertakes the activity of the Remuneration Committee {'RemCo’), to oversee senior management
remuneration and also to determine any severance payments in respect of termination of appointments for
senior post holders. Note that the role of Trustee of The Prince’s Foundation is a non-remunerated position.
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Strategic Report for the year ended 31 March 2022 {continued)
Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control {continued)

Transparency, adequacy and effectiveness of corporate govemance and risk management arrangements,
including compliance with statutory and regulatory responsibilities {continved)

Audit and Risk Committee (‘AARC')

The first meeting of AARC was held on 10 March 2022. AARC is a newly created Committee, in year, taking on
some of the responsibilities of the Finance, Investment and Audit Committee (FIAC) as outlined above.

AARC oversees the appointment, effectiveness and objectivity of the external auditors; the integrity of the
group’s financial reporting; and the effectiveness of the group’s internal control environment.

Members of the Foundation’s senior management team are invited to attend meetings of AARC but they are not
members of the Committee, and AARC meets with the external auditor without senior executives being present
at least once a year.

Funding Approval Committee {'FAC')

The first meeting of FAC was held on 6 September 2022. FAC was previously the Ethics Committee but has been
renamed to more appropriately describe its responsibilities.

FAC oversees, on behalf of the Group’s Board of Trustees, due diligence processes and the review process for
donation prospects, including the review and approval of referred fundraising prospects and all material
donations.

Nominations Committee (‘NomCo')

NomCo reviews which skills, knowledge and experience the Board of Trustees requires, and leads the process
for recruiting those positions and making recommendations to the Board for the appointment of Trustees,
NomCo's role extends to the appointment of senior staff positions such as the Chief Executive Officer.

Internal control arrangements with respect to identifying and managing risk, the effectiveness of these
arrangements and the role of external audit

The Prince’s Foundation’s system of internal controls and risk management is based on an ongoing process
designed to identify and mitigate risks to our achievement of policies and charitable ohjects. This process has
been in place for the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to the date of approval of these financial statements, in
line with OfS guidance.

The Board of Trustees has responsibility for implementing and reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal controls. The following processes have been established in relation to implementing an effective system
of internal control and ongoing review of its effectiveness:

- The Board of Trustees meets at regular intervals and at least four times each year. This is in addition to
regular meetings of the Board’'s Committees, the scope of each of those meetings is described above,
and the Board receives reports from its Committees on matters arising;
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Strategic Report for the year ended 31 March 2022 {continued)

Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control {continued)

L

Internal control arrangements with respect to identifying and managing risk, the effectiveness of these
arrangements and the role of extemal audit {continued) '

- The Board has delegated to the Audit and Risk Committee {AARC} some of the responsibility for
providing oversight of risk management. This includes bi-annual reviews of the Group risk register and
ongoing updates on risk management on topics as they arise. The Group risk register includes an
assessment of the likelihood and impact of risks becoming a reality. Qur approach to risk assessment is
that it is embedded in ongoing operations and includes all categories of likely risk to which the
Foundation is exposed, including operational, financial, regulatory' and legal;

- AARC also considers detailed audit reports from the external auditor together with management action
plans for the improvement of our systems of internal control, and monitors those plans;

- The Trustees’ Strategic Report for the year ended 31 March 2022, at page 3 above, includes an update
on the principal risks and uncertainties to which the Foundation is exposed. Trustees have included
within this report a review of internal control weaknesses and actions taken in response;

- There is regular review of management information tools including budget setting and tracking,
monthly management accounts, bank reconciliations and monthly restricted funds reconciliations. Cash
flow forecasts are used to oversee and manage current and future liquidity. Key internal financial
controls include segregation of duties for accounting reconciliations, controls over system access and
payment authorisation procedures.

This system of internal control is designed to manage — rather than eliminate — the risk of failure to achieve
policies, aims and objectives. It can only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance of effectiveness. However,
the Trustees are committed to maintaining a sound system of internal control and risk management and intend
to maintain the highest standards in all areas and foster a culture of the utmost integrity and probity.

Global economic outlook

The Trustees are monitoring the current macroeconomic environment, in particularly global inflationary effects,
and the associated impact on the charity, The current uncertainty over the war in Ukraine has also led to volatility
in international markets. How these events might develop, the scale of those developments and the wider
impacts are difficult to predict, though a period of heightened uncertainty seems inevitable.

The Trustees have considered inflationary pressures in the recent budget, and have reviewed the financial
position of the charity and its cash flow and reserves in light of this. The capital value of our investment portfolios
is being monitored closely by Trustees to ensure the safeguarding of these funds. The risk register has also been
reviewed, and the Trustees will continue to moniter developments.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:

M—-—'@*&W

Dame Susan Bruce
Chair
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Report of the Trustees for the year ended 31 March 2022
Objectives and Activities
Objectives

The overarching charitable objective of The Prince’s Foundation, as set out in its Memorandum and Articles of
Association, was amended on 29 March 2018 to reflect the new activities to be undertaken by the Foundation
as a result of the aforementioned mergers. The Foundation’s objects are for the benefit of the public:

e The advancement of education, training and retraining;

¢+ The advancement of heritage and the protection, preservation, conservation, improvement and
revitalisation of the built environment, the environment, traditional arts and architecture of all
civilisations and monuments, structures or sites of particular beauty of historical, architectural or
constructional interest;

» The advancement of citizenship or community development;

» The provision of recreational activities, or the organisation of recreational activities, with the object of
improving the conditions of life for persons in need by reason of youth, age, infirmity, disablement,
poverty or social or economic circumstances;

e The preservation and maintenance of Dumfries House, its contents, grounds, outbuildings and
surrounding land and other heritage sites in Scotland and the rest of the world; and

¢ To undertake other charitable activities, both locally and nationally, either directly or by supporting
others undertaking those activities. in particular the Foundation aims to increase the knowledge,
understanding and interest in Dumfries House and the preservation of its artefacts, and to promaote
social, cultural, recreational and educational activities for the benefit of the local community and
beyond, whether through the provision of facilities where residents can come together for community
events or recreational activities, or through improvements to historic buildings, cormmunity facilities
and public open spaces.

Additionally, the Foundation seeks tc minimise its environmental impact and where practicable apply the
principles of sustainability and harmony to its actions. The Foundation falls within the scope of the carbon
reporting requirements under the government’s Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting {SECR) Policy. Our
Carbon Audit report is available on pages 26 to 27.

Cur vision

As defined and led by our President, The Prince’s Foundation’s vision is to support people to create community,
through teaching traditional arts and skills, restoring historic sites, championing a sustainable approach to the
way people build community, and maintaining Dumfries House and its estate as an example of heritage-led
regeneration, Qur mission is to ensure that, through our initiatives, we will have a positive impact upon the lives
of all within the communities where we work, regardless of gender, age, politics, wealth or religion.

It was always the ambition of The Prince’s Foundation’s Founder and President, and a key objective of the
Foundation, to demonstrate how a place of historic and cultural significance can be used as a catalyst to
regenerate its surrounding community in terms of leadership, leisure, culture, training and education,
employment and wellbeing. Through joining forces with The Prince's Foundation for Building Community, The
Prince's School of Traditional Arts, The Prince's Regeneration Trust and The Queen Elizabeth Castle of Mey Trust,
it is the intention that our organisation will enhance its reach nationally ard internationally using relevant
knowledge and experience accumulated over many years.
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Report of the Trustees for the year ended 31 March 2022 {continued)
Recognising the contribution of our volunteers
Volunteers play a significant role in delivering our charitable objects.

in the financial year to 31 March 2022, and since the re-opening of the estate post Covid-19 restrictions, we
welcomed back many of our previous volunteers and also some new ones. At Dumfries House we have had 16
volunteers assisting with house tours and 1arger events during the year, in addition to 7 volunteers in the gardens
who have been worki ng across four acres of the organic and educational gardens carrying out a variety of tasks
including weeding, pruning and mulching. In the prior year, we had approximately 15 volunteers in total on the
Dumfries House estate, this lower number reflecting reduced activity due to Covid-19 restrictions.

The Queen Elizabeth Castle of Mey Trust continues to be assisted by their 2 volunteer gardeners. And, at
Highgrove, we are assisted by 17 volunteer garden tour guides and 16 volunteer shop assistants.

We are very grateful for the contribution of our volunteers across the Foundation’s activities at various locations.

Executive summary of achievements and performance 2021-2022

The preservation and maintenance of the Dumfries House Estate continues 1o be a key objective of the
Foundation. The last year has seen an ongoing programme of investment continue at Dumfries House and other
Foundation properties. This included investment in the preparation for re-opening, post Covid-19 restrictions
being lifted, and the overall needs of the organisation across all sites.

Throughout the year, despite some Covid-19 restrictions remaining in place, the estate and grounds were able
to remain open. The Dumfries House Lodge and Café fully reopened in the summer, with Dumfries House
opening on reduced hours. The completion of the new free-to-use children’s playpark, in year, added further
interest to the estate and is helping to retain visitors for longer as well as attracting new ones and encouraging
repeat visits.

During the year the Foundatian acquired a new commercial entity, A G Carrick Limited (AGC). AGC is based at
Highgrove, Gloucestershire, and operates a commercial retail business and generates income from copyrights,
tours of the Highgrove gardens and restaurant sales. AGC was gifted to the Foundation from The Prince of Wales
Charitable Fund (PWCF} so that the future economic benefits may pass to The Prince’s Foundation and support
its new education facilities being developed at Highgrove.

In addition te this the Foundation also utilised the Garrison Chapel in Chelsea Barracks and a larger teaching
space at Trinity Buoy Wharf, both of which have helped raise the profile of the Foundation and increase the
capacity of our education activity.

Dumfries House Home Farm continues to build on its organic accreditation. The farm has been largely unaffected
by the pandemic and continued to operate throughout the year. The livestock numbers remain similar to
previous years with around 700 sheep and 140 cattle all of which are rare breeds.

At The Queen Elizabeth Castle of Mey Trust, investment has been made into the gardens and infrastructure,
helping to further enhance the visitor experience. Refurbishment work was undertaken to the Visitor Centre and
the Captain’s House whilst the estate was dosed during Covid-19. The Granary accommodation opened when
restrictions were relaxed and saw guest numbers gradually increase towards the end of the season as tourism
returned to the area. Longhoe Farm has been unaffected by the pandemic and livestock numbers remain similar
to previous years with approximately 120 cattle and 300 sheep.

Page 10



The Prince’s Foundation
Trustees' report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Report of the Trustees for the year ended 31 March 2022 {continued)
Capital projects in the year

The investment in the infrastructure of Dumfries House and other Foundation properties continued during the
year via a number of capital projects, as detailed below:

Dumfries House

o Coachford cottage. Works continued on Coachford cottage until the Summer which saw the completicn
of both buildings. The development consists of a two-bedroom cottage with shared living space and
two artist studios. The buildings will be used by tutors and students for a variety of different courses.

*  Pennylands cottage. The refurbishment and development of Pennylands cottage was completed in
year. The development of the cottage served as the basis of the Live Build program. The development
congsists of a cottage and kennels which is now home to the estate shepherdess and sheepdogs.

» Adventure playground. The extension of the existing adventure playground 1o incorporate treetop
walks and play equipment for older children was completed in year.

*  Printmaking studio. Works on the printmaking studio began in year and the development completed
in Spring 2022. The building will offers a dedicated space for traditional printmaking on the estate. It is
anticipated that a wide variety of courses and workshops will be hosted there.

¢ STEM Live Build. The construction of new outdoor classrooms and bridge at the STEM centre. The
twelve-week build brought together traditional building craftspeople in order to complete the facility.
The new space is being used for a variety of classroom-based activities for children of all ages.

Highgrove

¢ Barley Court. The refurbishment of Barley Court was completed in year, with two floors used for the
delivery of Education (textiles) programs whilst the third floor will be used to house AGC office staff.

+  Street Farm. The redevelopment of Street Farm commenced in July and is ongoing. When finished the
facility will accommodate eight residential students and have four different workshop areas, each
offering a different craft skill.

Castle of Mey

+ Captain's House. The refurbishment of the Captain’s House took place in year. Interior decoration was
upgraded throughout, and remedial works were carried out to the fabric of the building.

Future Capital Projects
In the short term our aims and objectives for capital projects on and around the Dumfries House estate include:

« Farm Education Facility. Construction will begin shortly on the Rural Skills Training Centre. The
development will consist of two practical classrooms, teaching barn and other facilities to enable the
delivery of practical agricultural education programmes on the estate in conjunction with Home Farm.

* The Glenside Applied Arts Centre. This project will incorporate traditional building skills and traditional
arts. The centre will be situated on the site of the Glenside Farm.

Longer term aims and objectives for the Foundation's capital projects are as follows:

+ The Pavilion. The creation of a new pavilion to the east of Dumfries House to replace the existing
marquee attached to Dumfries House.

+  Knockroon. A full review of the Knockroon project will be undertaken and plans will be developed
taking into account the CORE project and how that will be integrated into the masterplan.
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Report of the Trustees for the year ended 31 March 2022 {continued)
kEducation

The Prince’s Foundation’s education portfolio is diverse, covering subject areas including architecture and
urbanism, textiles, building craft, STEM, Food, Farming and Horticulture and a range of others. Core to our
educational delivery is a belief that these disciplines should not operate in @ vacuum but be taught in a
collaborative, interdisciplinary way. Our programmes are delivered across the UK, with several centres in both
England and Scotland, as well as internationally and online.

This year, in person delivery continued to be impacted by Covid-19 restrictions particularly at the beginning of
the financial year. However, by the start of the Autumn term most programmes returned in person, albeit in
smaller numbers in some cases than before, due the requirements of social distancing within spaces and some
uncertainty remaining around restrictions and new variants.

Despite the challenging landscape, we were pleased to have been able to continue our planned delivery and to
expand our offering into new programmes. Highgrove Craft Centre opened, with the refurbishment of Barley
Court as a textile centre. The Foundation also commenced delivery of the newly refreshed Diploma Year, based
at Trinity Buoy Wharf. In addition, we delivered the first of the approved City and Guilds qualifications to a long-
established community group, some of whom had not achieved formal qualifications previously.

During the financial year the Foundation delivered educational activities across our various sites, as follows:
Dumfries House
Horticulture and Food Education

The principal aim of the work being undertaken in the Pierburg Education Centre and the Kauffman Education
Garden is to teach children where fresh vegetables come from, underpinning the notion of healthy eating and
fresh produce. This year showed a return 1o a higher level of delivery compared to prior year, with schools
returning in the Autumn for day visits. Schools were offered to split their days between the Pierburg and the
Farm, with delivery shared with other centres. There was a sense that, for those taking part, an understanding
of food supply and security issues were at the forefront of an increased understanding of the need for a local
and seasonal food supply. The curriculum content demonstrated how to ensure seasonal and locally grown food
could mitigate the impact of a future pandemic.

Food for the Future

‘fFood for the Future' (FFTF) is an education pilot programme, part of The Prince’s Foundation’s ‘Making Food Go
further food waste initiative, in partnership with Jamie Oliver, Jimmy Docherty and The Soil Association. The
aim of the programme is to enable participating pupils to develop their understanding of how the food system
works and how it impacts on the environment to enable them to then play their part in reducing food waste,
Students use their learning to come up with a solution to a food waste issue. This ranges from local and
community-based solutions to exploring how to improve industry processes.

Despite restrictions and the impact of Covid-19, attendance numbers demonstrated a strong desire to better
understand food waste. The first phase of the programme has ended with 48 pupils, from four secondary
schools, having completed a series of five experiential practice-based masterclasses at Dumfries House estate.
Early indicators demonstrate the positive impact FFTF has had on the students. Prior to starting the program
only 50% of participants considered how much food was wasted when grown, produced or at anindividual level.
immediately after completion of the masterclass series, 74% of students were implementing ways to reduce
food waste at home.
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Report of the Trustees for the year ended 31 March 2022 {continued)
Education {continued)
Growing Together, Cooking Together

‘Growing Together, Cooking Together’ (GTCT) is our flagship extended engagement programme. The aim is to
give participating classes, and their schools, the knowledge and skills to create their own school kitchen garden.
We do this by developing children’s skills in horticulture, food preparation, healthy food choices and
sustainability through learning how to grow and cook their own produce. The programme can then be led in
subsequent years by the teacher and pupil cohort, in keeping with The Prince's Foundation's ‘Learn, Practice,
Teach’ ethos, creating a virtuous cycle of the learner becoming the practitioner and then teacher.

This year, 24 Primary 5 and Primary & pupils from Muirkirk Primary school took part in the GTCT project. They
worked with our estate joiners and tood education team over ten wisits to create thew own planters, and
participated in a variety of activities focusing on plant science, reducing food waste, sustainable gardening,
organics, sowing, growing, encouraging wildlife and protecting soil. They then planted and cultivated vegetables
and harvested their crop before visiting Dumfries House to produce seasonal soup, courgette bakes and carrot
muffins. Students create a video showcasing the journey both their school and they themselves experienced.

At the end of the project, there was a 20% increase in the number of students who answered ‘yes’ when asked
if, when choosing food, they now considered the impact it had on the environment. 100% of participants stated
they care more about food waste having taken part, with 75% interested in growing their own food at home.
The project has built stronger refationships with both schools and the wider community, sharing the vision of
The Prince’s Foundation and showcasing our education delivery.

Residential, Outdoor and Nature Based Learming

Covid-19 restrictions at the beginning of the financial year meant that multiple occupancy of the residential
centre was not possible. However, the centre became home for 12 weeks to the Building Crafts students who
had a bedroom each and were able to become a safe ‘bubble’ for working onsite. From October 2021, Covid-19
restrictions lifted and we began offering muitiple residential packages once again. Demand was steady with
groups who had postponed their initial bookings finally able to visit. Day visits increased due to the focus from

. schools on the understanding that learning outdoors and in nature was of benefit to pupils’ wellbeing which is
a stated priority for Scottish Education. The centre team co-ordinated the delivery of Fresh Start which is a
multidisciplinary programme. It's Up to Us and the G.R.LT programme were also well received, the latter
delivered to a group of Kickstarter young people at the commencement of their working career with ACS Clothing
in Motherwell. The outdoor centre team has been working more closely with the other school education
delivery centres to assist the delivery of their programmes allowing the team to deepen the links between
curriculum areas.

Science, Technology, Engineering and Maths (STEM)

In May 2021, school day visits began returning to the estate. The STEM education team successfully
implemented a new collaboration with the STEM and Outdoor Learning education representatives at North
Ayrshire Council which has seen many schools visiting the estate, not just for STEM workshops but across the
curriculum areas. In 2021 much focus has been on cross curricular delivery with programmes such as Fresh
Starts, It's Up to Us and Food for the Future taking priority. Working more closely with the other school education
delivery centres has presented opportunities to engage with pupils over a longer period of time and deepen the
links between the STEM education programme and the other curriculum areas. STEM principles have been more
strongly embedded in all codesigned programmes because of this collaborative delivery approach. This year also
saw the launch of the first of five “Skills Week’ programmes and a new drive for secondary school workshops.
This was part of the strategic plan 1aid out in 2020, and it is hoped that the success of this programme will
encourage STEM industry partner involvement in future events.
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Education {continued)
Farm Education

The farm education delivery programme was reduced at the beginning of the year, compared to previous years,
primarily due to Covid-19. However, by the final quarter of the financial year, delivery was similar to pre-Covid
levels with regular bookings for day visits and an increase in interest for the forthcoming months, Day workshops
focused on farm tours remained popular for primary pupils along with exploring concepts such as food miles
and by products of food.

Hospitality

In September 2021 we commenced our traditional delivery of the ‘Get into Hospitality’ course with a refreshed
curriculum which expanded depth of learning in sustainable practice and principles as well as enhancing practical
experience through the introduction of live service. The 6-week course recruited in collaboration with The
Prince’s Trust.

We were able to recruit a small cohort of six students {maximum number in line with social distancing) all of
whom were seeking employment but had previously faced barriers to accessing the workplace. The focus began
on building soft skills. While developing these soft skills the students undertook classes in our various areas
across the estate developing Barista skills in the Coach House Café, Housekeeping and Reception skills at the
Dumfries House Lodge and being educated in organic, sustainable, and locally sourced foods within the
Kauffman Education Garden and Pierburg Education Farm. Historically the course yields a strong 80% success
rating for getting students into work. The data supplied by The Prince’s Trust showed this continued to uphold
with five of the six students gaining employment within 3 months of the course finishing.

Trinity Buoy Wharf
Diploma Year

This represents the first year of The Prince’s Foundation Diploma Year, operating from Trinity Buoy Wharf. The
Diploma Year is a course in fine and applied art, delivered five days per week for 36 weeks each year. '

This year we have awarded 18 scholarships to students, seven of whom are from boroughs local to Trinity Buoy
wharf. We provide scholarship and bursary support for disadvantaged students to ensure an opportunity exists
to nurture their artistic potential and improve their progression opportunities in Higher Education.

The course is designed to prepare students to progress on to BA degrees in creative subjects including, but not
limited to, Fine Art, Applied Arts, Architecture, Design and the Crafts. Students are prepared for the
requirements, challenges and expectations of Higher Education through UCAS support, portfolio preparation,
mock interviews and personal statement writing.

89% of the 2021-22 cohort were awarded either a Distinction or Merit for their Final Assessment. Some examples
of progression routes for our students include: University of the Arts London, University of Edinburgh, Glasgow
School of Art, The Ruskin School of Art Oxford, Goldsmiths, Newcastle University, University College London,
British Institute of Florence and McGill University Canada.

We are delighted to have the use of an additional animation studio, a large photography dark room and the
integration of the Future Textiles studios into The Prince’s Foundation building at Trinity Buoy Wharf.
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Education {continued)
Highgrove

The Prince’s Foundation acquired the operating lease for two educational facilities, Barley Court and Street
Farm, at the Highgrove estate in july 2021. These two teaching areas are at different stages in their development,
with the refurbishment of Barley Court comoleting in year, with two floors used for the delivery of Education
(textiles) programs, whilst the redevelopment of Street Farm commenced in July and is ongoing.

This year we have focused on outreach and inhouse workshops with community groups, and developing links
with local groups and charities, for the provision of education and training. We have taken time to cultivate a
positive relationship with the existing team at Highgrove, AG Carrick staff and the gardeners and the garden
volunteers. In June 2022 we came together to create a Jubilee tea party event that both celebrated The Queen's
Platinum Jubilee and benefited the local community.

Barley Court textiles studio

We held two public open days, inviting local textile and craft practitioners and members of the local community
to Barley Court, and have taken time to understand what the local interests and needs are and what our future
programme of workshops will look like. We have reached out 10 Young Gloucestershire, Creative Youth Network
and Friendship cafes in Gloucester and Tetbury and delivered regular workshops both on and off site. We have
also participated in a collaborative project with the MShed in Bristol to create a garment for display in the
myseum during Sustainable Fashion week. We are exploring how we can deliver City & Guilds accredited courses
in the Autumn and finally, we worked with local volunteers to make nearly 200 metres of bunting for The
Queen’s Platinum Jubilee.

Snowdon School of Furniture

Earlier this Spring we advertised for the Snowdon Summer School, receiving 21 applications from a wide of
people including existing students, new graduates and upskilling professionals. We have also recruited a
furniture coordinator, who was alumnus of the Snowdon Summer School, who will start at the beginning of June
2022. We look forward to seeing the furniture workshops kitted out with benches, storage, and machinery,
ready for the commencement of activity this summer.

Collaboration projects

We have been in planning mode with the wider team at Dumfries House to prepare for the Fashion X Craft
project with the German Fashion Council. This exciting project will be our first major collaboration project at
Highgrove and we look forward to welcoming the students, and craft practitioners, to our new workshops to
participate in this three week project.

UK wide and international

The Prince’s Foundation operates across the UK and internationally to support people to plan the future of their
community, to learn traditional crafts and skills needed to build sustainably and to share the results as examples
of best practice in urban design, architecture, planning and textiles. Collaborations range from short courses and
seminars through 1o long term education and training programmes,
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Education fcontinued)
Future Textiles

Our future textiles activity operates at sites across the UK — Dumfries House, Trinity Buoy Wharf and Highgrove.
This year we have been able to deliver courses in person orice again, government restrictions permitting, by
adapting studio spaces to allow for greater social distancing and air circulation. Online delivery for our school
and community programmes was implemented during Covid-19 restricted periods, with physical delivery
resuming in May 2021 for community groups and in the Autumn for school groups.

Modern Artisan (Edition 2} commenced in September 2021 with a mixed cohort of four UK and four Italian
students, based in their home country under the wing of YNAP for the design, development and business skills
part of the programme. The students commenced their practical studies at Dumfries House in January 2022.

September 2021 saw the delayed conclusion of Knitwise year 1. This programme brings together hand knitters
to demonstrate the positive impact knitting can have on wellbeing, along with developing skills that can offer a
source of income generation. The aim of the year 1 programme was originally to knit squares in different
techniques to create a portfolio. However, due to the pandemic, the concept was changed to join these squares
into blankets which could then be donated to other charities. A call to action resulted in many home knitters
across the world sending in their squares, and three large art pieces (with a total of 2000 squares} were unveiled
on the Adam Bridge in September 2021. 9 members of the Dumfries House Sewing Bee undertook the first City
and Guilds offering with a further 8 pupils commencing the offering at Trinity Buoy Wharf,

At Highgrove, the refurbishment of the textile studio took place in year, with the same machinery and studio
layout as at Dumfries House and Trinity Buoy Wharf,

Academic programmes

Qur academic education programmes provide specialised training for people interested in tackling the
challenges of global warming, rapid urbanization, resource depletion, and the lack of knowledge and skills in
traditional arts and craft.

The Prince’s Foundation is one of very few organisations in the United Kingdom addressing this diverse but
interconnected range of issues. Our courses include an MSc in Sustainable Urban Development with the
University of Oxford; an M5c¢ in Sustainable Engineering Management with Swansea University and an MS¢ in
Environment and Development with the University of Bahrain. In addition, we co-edit the Journal of Urbanism
and we are founding partners of the Global Centre for Healthcare and Urbanisation at Kellogg College, University
of Oxford. Courses were taught over the course of this year with a mixture of online and in-person delivery.

Vocational programmes - Building Craft and Building Arts Programmes

Our craft programmes provide training for the next generation of master craftspeople working with traditional
craft skills. Over a third of those working in the heritage crafts are currently nearing retirement age and around
three quarters are not currently undertaking any activity to pass on their skills and knowledge. Courses include
our leng running Building Crafts Programme as well as our Building Arts Programme delivered in partnership
with The Queen Elizabeth Scholarship Trust (QEST). Both programmes are full time courses delivered over a
number of months, taking on a small cohort (8-12) of adult learners each year. Programmes provide the
opportunity for learners to connect with leading craftspeople from across the sector via industry placements,
focussed workshops and collaborative group projects. By engaging students to a range of practices and
disciplines, we believe we are training not just skilled craftspeople but proponents of the creation of healthy,
sustainable and beautiful communities.
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Education {continued)
Short courses and CPD

We run a range of short courses, professional development and executive education for students and
practitioners. These courses provide specialised training, often interdisciplinary in nature, targeted at filling gaps
in existing skillsets. Courses include summer schools, public programmes, short courses and seminar series.

Whilst the majority of these courses were delivered in person, a number of the courses were delivered online
over the past year due to Covid-19 restrictions.

The Prince’s Foundation School of Traditional Arts

The School has pioneered practical MA, MPhil and PhD degrees in the traditional arts of the world's great
civilisations. These degree courses are validated by the University of Wales and University of Wales Trinity Saint
David. Despite lockdown restrictions, by moving some courses online, the entire programme of study was
delivered successfully.

The School also offers lectures, workshops and short, practical courses in traditional arts and crafts as part of
the ‘Open programme’ in the UK. The School reintroduced in-person teaching for the winter term and a hybrid
model has been developed with online and in-person courses available to students.

The School’s International Outreach programme delivers courses beyond the UK and operates six centres
worldwide. Due to the Covid-19 outbreak, in-person teaching was impacted. In response, the School adapted
elements of the curriculym to online learning, taught by UK-based staff and local tutors in line with local Covid-
19 restrictions. For the 2021 academic term, as internaticonal flight restrictions were eased, the curriculum for
most of the School’s international centres were delivered in-person by UK staff and international tutors.

Architecture and Heritage

A key focus of our Architecture and Heritage (A&H) team is to champion a more sustainable approach to how
we live our lives and build our communities through an understanding of Harmony. We specialise in planning,
urban design and heritage-based architecture by supporting communities that are facing growth pressure. We
are a trusted partner to public, private and third sector organisations in the UK and overseas, and our aim is to
bring together local communities through our proven ‘Enquiry by Design’ methodology.

Our core service in the ‘urbanism’ theme includes initial community engagement, master planning with support
vision documents, and design codes or supporting planning applications. As part of the ‘architectural’ offer — we
work largely at the concept stages, including engagement support, but look to handover the detailed design /
construction stages to local practices.

During the past year the team has been delivering a large international project, up to three site-based pilot
projects using our Rapid Urbanisation Toolkit, up to three master planning projects in the UK, up to five
community engagement roles, and up to seven architectural and conservation roles.

Key projects for this year include a continued role in Bahrain (previously delivered via Community Capital
Limited), a series of five workshops in Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole, plus several exciting patronage
projects.

These projects are supported by a range of research and networking programmes, including Building a Legacy,
which promotes legacy-based development across the UK.
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Performance Review

During the financial year to March 2022, key measures of success for the Foundation included continued
investment in our properties, estates and gardens to increase visitor appeal, and expanding the breadth and
reach of our charitable activities, in particular our education offering.

The Foundation has met all of these objectives during the year. Our education programmes resumed in person
teaching, where possible, with some continuing with a hybrid approach of online and in person. The return to
the classroom coincided with the Foundation’s estates and gardens reopening following the removal of Covid-
19 restrictions. We have invested in our estates and gardens during the year, as set out on page 11, including
the development of new facilities and recreational spaces. In addition, the Foundation acquired a new
commercial entity, A G Carrick Limited [AGC), which operates a commercial retail business in Highgrove,
Gloucestershire, and generates income from copyrights, tours of the Highgrove gardens and restaurant sales.
The business was gifted to the Foundation from The Prince of Wales Charitable Fund (PWCF) so that the future
economic benefits may pass to The Prince’s Foundation and support its new education facilities being developed
at Highgrove.

The Foundation funds a proportion of its activities through commercial operations undertaken by its trading
subsidiaries, but it is reliant upon philanthropic donations for a significant proportion of its income. Philanthropic
donations are sourced from private individuals or other legal persons such as trusts and more rarely, companies,
following due diligence checks and the recommendations of our Funding Approval Committee, as appropriate.

Sufficient funds were raised from philanthropic donations to fund the charity's planned activity for the year and
we are grateful to our benefactors for their ongoing support. The charity has met its operational fundraising
requirements during the year. Details of the development projects and, where applicable, information about
the expected future benefits arising from them are included within this report.

Financial Review

During the financial year to 31 March 2022, the Foundation had income of £22,476,925, an overall increase of
9% from the previous year (2021: £20,636,241). Of this, £13,890,669 was general funds, £8,428,638 restricted
funds and £157,618 endowment funds. The general funds included donations, grants and gifts in kind of
£6,098,727 (2021: £13,830,127) and income generated from the Foundation's Dumfries House trading
aperations of £2,012,614 (2021: £302,359). The restricted funds include £3,452,089 of capital donations (2021:
£1,357,937). The year on year increase in capital donations is due primarily to the addition of the new Highgrove
education facilities which received funding in year.

The charity had a strong year financially, recording a surplus of £3.2m at year end and a positive free group
reserves position (see Reserves Statement). This has been achieved through careful management of the charity's
cash flow, including the realisation of investments, a continued focus on cost management during the Covid-19
pandemic and sustained donor funding which supported the charity's reserves.

Donaticns and legacies decreased year-on-year by 19% but this was anticipated as there had been an exceptional
donation of £5m in the prior year, resulting from a very kind legacy. Fundraising costs increased by £98k due to
marketing and communications being issued following the reopening of the estate and new exhibition facilities
at Garrison Chapel at Chelsea Barracks.
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Financial Review {continued)

Expenditure on charitable activities increased by £2.7m (27%) during the year. This is due partially to the
normalisation of costs as our charitable activities and facilities re-opened but also due to the expansion of the
tharitable activities in Highgrove, Gloucestershire, architectural and heritage works and our education offering.

On average, 354 people were employed during the financial year (2021: 279). Staff numbers increased
significantly due to the addition of staff at AG Carrick, Highgrove and seasonal hires at the Castie of Mey after
lockdown restrictions eased.

Reserves Statément

At the year end March 2022, the Foundation had a positive free group reserves position of £8,456,680 (2021:
£8,053,194). This has been achieved primarily through sustaining a significant unrestricted donation of £5m’
received in April 2020 to support the charity's reserves during the initial lockdown in response to the Covid-19
pandemic.

The Prince’s Foundation group aims to hold three months' of operating expenditure in reserve. The Foundation
also maintains an overdraft as a cantingency liability facility.

Total Foundation net assets are £129,614,549 as of year-end {2021: £126,408,281).

Plans for Future Periods

The cultivation of philanthropic donations is essential to support ongoing delivery of our charitable objectives,
and is a key focus for the charity. Our philanthropic donations are supported by commercial trading activity,
which has been recovering since the relaxation of Covid-19 restrictions,

The full impact and duration of the Covid-19 outbreak is still uncertain, with the threat of new variants an ever-
present risk. However, through ongoing careful financial management and the generosity of our donors, we are
confident of being able to continue te deliver on our charitable objectives.

Our overall objective is to ensure the Foundation delivers on its charitable objects and the vision and mission of
our President. We will continue to invest in the management and preservation of our estates and properties for
the benefit of the public and 1o ensure that we are able to continue to deliver our education and other charitable
activity.
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Structure, Governance and Management

The Prince’s Foundation is a company limited by guarantee incorporated in 2007, charity number SC038770 and
company registration number SC331738. The Foundation has a number of subsidiaries as of 31 March 2022:

Dumfries House Trust Trading Limited (incorporated October 2007, registration number 5C333119)
operates the Foundation's commercial activities at Dumfries House, New Cumnock and Ballater
including House admissions, gift shop, café, weddings, events, B&B and holiday letting activities.

Dumfries House Home Farm Limited (incorporated January 2004, registration number $C261878)
manages the farming activities and owns land surrounding the Dumfries House estate.

Dumfries Farming and Land Limited (incorporated October 2007, registration number 06391121) owns
land that is intended for residential development purposes. The company has ownership of the
development site at Knockroon.

The Queen Elizabeth Castle of Mey Trust (established 11 June 1996, charity number 5024983}, a
charity set up for the benefit of the inhabitants of the United Kingdom, for the preservation of buildings
and monuments with historical importance and architectural interest, the advancement of historical
and architectural education by offering opportunities for access to buildings or monuments and the
preservation and education of the public of Aberdeen Angus Cattle and North Country Cheviot Sheep.
The Trust's articles were changed on 1 January 2019 which added the object of the preservation in
perpetuity for the public benefit of the Castle of Mey, its contents, its grounds and land.

Castle and Gardens of Mey Limited {incorporated April 2003, registration number 5C247163) operates
The Queen Elizabeth Castle of Mey Trust's commercial activities, including The Granary bed & breakfast,
shop and tearoom.

AG Carrick Limited (incorporated May 1988, registration number 022538628) offers organic food and
lifestyle products through its two shops in Gloucestershire and online sale. It also generates income
from copyrights, tours of the gardens at Highgrove and restaurant sales.

Community Capital Limited* (incorporated August 2001, registration number 04268547) offers
building consultancy services.

The Prince’s School of Traditional Arts* (incorporated November 2003, registration number 04970959,
charity number 1101527), a charity set up for the advancement of education in the practice and
application of the traditional arts and architecture of traditional civilisations and the promotion of the
practice and appreciation of such traditional arts and architecture.

The Prince's Foundation for Building Community* (incorporated June 1998, registration number
03579567 charity number 1069969), a charity set up for the promotion of sustainable development
and advancement education.

The Prince's Regeneration Trust* (incorporated December 2001, registration number 04342518,
charity number 1089932), a charity that works with communities to ensure that important buildings at
risk of demolition or decay are preserved, regenerated and re-used.

* Troding hos ceosed ond these entities are intended to becorne dormant. We have absorbed the charitable
activities of these subsidiary organisations into the work of The Prince's Foundation and its subsidiaries.

Page 20



The Prince’s Foundation
Trustees' report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Report of the Trustees for the year ended 31 March 2022 {continued}
Our Staff

At the beginning of April 2021, the Foundation employed 269 staff. By the end of March 2022, the Foundation
employed a total of 360 staff. The average headcount is 354 (2021: 279) which equates to a full time equivalent
of 240 (2021: 188}. For details of the senior management team see page 29. A split of the average headcount
by entity can be found in the notes to the accounts.

Equality, Diversity and Inclusion

The Prince’s Foundation is committed to equal treatment of all employees and applicants to promote a cuiture
which actively values difference, recognising that people from diverse backgrounds bring valuable insights to
the workplace and enhance the way we do business. The Foundation is an equal opportunities employer and
aims to be an inclusive arganisation by recruiting, training, promoting and rewarding on the basis of merit and
irrespective of the protected characteristics detailed in the Equality Act 2010. This includes our commitment to
support employees and applicants with disabilities, and to make every effort that should any employee become
disabled during the course of employment they will stay in employment.

The Board of Trustees

The first and current President of the Foundation is His Majesty, King Charles lil. Lord Snowdon became Vice
President in April 2018.

The Foundation is administered by a Board of Trustees which meets at least four times each year. The Board of
Trustees sets and oversees the strategic direction of the Foundation and is responsible for all policy decisions.
The charity's decision-making powers require a majority of Trustees, present in person, which represents a
quorum. Training and induction is provided to new Trustees. The Trustees are selected from a variety of relevant
backgrounds including heritage, education, business and finance, details of which can be found on pages 21 to
25. As of 15 September 2021 the Board of Trustees is chaired by Dame Susan Bruce {previously Mr Douglas
Connell}.

Dame Susan Bruce {Chair from 15 September 2021}, 1 April 2018 - present

Susan Bruce is a former public servant who during her career focussed on education and social and economic
regeneration. She held the posts of Chief Executive of City of Edinburgh, Aberdeen City and East Dunbartonshire
Councils, Sue holds a portfolio of non-executive and trustee roles with SSE PLC; Chair of the Royal Scoftish
National Orchestra; Convener of Court at the University of Strathclyde and Electoral Commissioner for
Scotland. She is also a Deputy Lieutenant of the City of Edinburgh and a member of the Royal Company of
Merchants of the City of Edinburgh.

Sue holds degrees of M.Phil and LLB from the University of Strathclyde. Sue is a Fellow of the Royal Society of
Edinburgh and of the RSA.
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Mr Douglas Connell (Chair from 23 March 2021 to 15 September 2021), October 2016 - 15 September 2021

Douglas Connell is the former senior partner and a founding partner of Turcan Connell, Solicitors, of Edinburgh,
Glasgow and London where he specialised in heritage property and charity law. He was Chairman of TCAM, an
investment and financial planning business. Dougtas is the former chairman of Museums Galleries Scotland
which is the national development body for Scotland’s museums and galleries. He has served as a Board member
of numerous arts and heritage organisations and as a Court member of the Universities of Edinburgh and St
Andrews. After many years in Scotland, Douglas now lives in Surrey and London.

Dame Ann Limb {Deputy Chair}, 21 June 2021 - present

Ann Limb is a former Further Education College Principal and senior civil servant. Since 2005, she has held Chair
and NED roles in business, economic development, housing, and regeneration. She is currently Chair of the
Innovation Corridor, UK's globally significant life sciences cluster. Ann also holds several national charity
positions as Chair of City & Guilds and founder of the Helena Kennedy Foundation. Ann was Chair of the Scouts
UK until September 2021. A linguist by background, feminist through experience, and Quaker by convincement.
Ann’s passionate belief in the power of art, creativity, education, imagination, and faith to transform individuals
and communities is based on her own life’s journey, from a butcher's shop in 1950's Moss Side to the
commissions of Deputy Lieutenant and High Sheriff of Buckinghamshire in nomination 2023-4.

Mr George Richards, 15 September 2018 — present

George Richards is the Director of Community Jameel, an independent, global organisation advancing science to
help communities thrive in a rapidly changing world.

An Arabist specialising in the archeoastronomy of pre-Islamic Arabia, George has undertaken field expeditions
to document cultural heritage on behalf of the British Library and the British Institute for the Study of iraq. He
has served as the special rapporteur for cultural heritage to the Kurdistan Regional Government; a specialist
assessor to the British government’s Cultural Protection Fund; and a senior feliow at the Iragi government's
cultural heritage commission, Iraq Heritage. He is a Fellow of the Royal Geographical Society and a Fellow of the
Society of Antiquaries of Scotland.

Mrs Rosemary Hilary, 21 June 2021 - present

Rosemary Hilary is an experienced non-executive director and risk professional. Her other board roles are at St
James’s Place where she chairs the Risk Committee; at Vitality Life and Health where she chairs the Risk
Committee; and at Willis Ltd where she chairs the Audit Committee. She is on the MBA Advisory Board of Bayes
{formerly known as Cass) Business School. Previous NED roies include the Pension Protection Fund and Record
Currency Management where, for both, she chaired the Audit and Risk Committee and the homelessness charity
Shelter.

Rosemary’s executive career was largely in banking and regulation. She was Chief Internal Auditor - an Executive
Committee role - at TSB Bank from 2013 to 2016 where she was part of the team that managed the IPQ. Prior
to that she held a number of senior positions at the Financial Conduct Authority, its predecessor the Financial
Services Authority and at the Bank of England.

Rosemary is a Chartered Certified Accountant — FCCA, and she gained a first-class honours degree in
Mathematics and European Studies from Manchester University.
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Report of the Trustees for the year ended 31 March 2022 {continued)
The Board of Trustees {continued)
Mr Michael Jary, 21 June 2021 - present

Michael Jary co-founded OC&C Strategy Consultants in 1987 and served as Global Managing Partner until 2011:
during this time the firm grew to 600 consultants across 12 offices worldwide. He is now a Senior Adviser at
OC&C, working with CEOs and boards on corporate strategy.

He holds a portfolio of board and trustee positions. He is a non-executive director of Barclays Bank UK plc. He is
chair of Itad, a data and insight company in international development. He is the lead non-executive director for
the UK government. He chairs Duchy Originals, the UK’s largest organic food brand which was established by
HRH The Prince of Wales. Prior to its transfer to The Prince’s Foundation, he also chaired AG Carrick Limited
which is the holding company for garden tours and retail activities at Highgrove House. He is a trustee of Opera
Holland Park. And he was formerly chair of Fairtrade Foundation.

Michael holds an MA from Oxford University, an MBA from INSEAD and a post-graduate diploma from SOAS.
Cavaliere Federico Marchetti, 21 June 2021 - present

Federico Marchetti is a tech entrepreneur and a sustainability pioneer: he founded YOOX - the world’s first
lifestyle e-commerce destination - in 2000 and in 2015, he drove the game-changing merger of YOOX and NET-
A-PORTER to create the world leader in online luxury fashion, which was acquired by Richemont in 2018.

Notably Federico has brought his entrepreneurial spirit to the heart of his social and environmental initiatives,
significantly advancing sustainable and socially responsible fashion.

He launched an area to promote sustainable fashion in 2009 and he also developed a customer experience to
embrace circular models. He remains convinced that the intelligent use of technology can help us save the
planet. In 2017 Federico was recognized by the President of the Italian Republic who knighted him as a Cavaliere.
In 2019 Federico was honoured with the amfAR Award of Courage, recognizing “his profound commitment to
important issues”.

Federico is Chair of His Royal Highness’s Sustainable Markets Initiative Task Force on Fashion and a Board
Member of Giorgio Armani, GEQI and AG Carrick, The Prince’s Foundation’s trading subsidiary responsible for
the Highgrove visitor attraction and shop on the estate in Gloucestershire.

Ms Sarah de Gay, 12 October 2021 - present

Sarah de Gay joined international law firm Slaughter and May in 1996, as a Corporate/M&A lawyer, and
established its Compliance Department in 2008. She was appointed as Slaughter and May's first General Caunsel
in 2015. Sarah stepped down as Slaughter and May's General Counsel at the end of 2019 to focus on a portfolio
of roles connected with values, standards and ethics. She is currently a Visiting Professor of UCL's Faculty of
Laws, an Independent Lay Member of the Editors’ Code of Practice Committee, an Independent Member of
ACOBA, Chair of the Advisory Board of Wallbrook {a strategic intelligence firm) and Senior Warden of the City of
London Solicitors’ Company. She also continues to advise Slaughter and May on certain regulatory matters as a
Special Advisor.
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Report of the Trustees for the year ended 31 March 2022 (continued)
The Board of Trustees {continued)]
Mr Ewan Venters, 15 March 2022 - present

Ewan Venters is Chief Executive Officer of international art gallery-Hauser & Wirth, which was founded in Zurich
in 1992 by lwan Wirth, Manuela Wirth and Ursula Hauser and represents over 80 leading artists and artists’
estates. An established business leader with a proven track record, Ewan oversees the strategic evolution of the
gallery and leads its global team across outposts in Hong Kong, London, New York, Los Angeles, Somerset,
Gstaad, St. Moritz, Southampton {NY), Menorca, and Monaceo. Hauser & Wirth have several hospitality interests
overseen by Ewan, including the award-winning Fife Arms Hotel on Royal Deeside, Ewan previously held the
position of Chief Executive Officer of Fortnum & Mason from 2012 to 2020. Under Ewan’s leadership, Fortnum’s
made record sales and profits, and expanded beyond their historic London home into new locations including
Hong Kong, Dubai, Heathrow Airport and St Pancras Station in London. He joined Fortnum & Mason from
Selfridges, where he was executive director for food, restaurants and online. in his seven years at Selfridges,
Ewan was part of an executive team which transformed the department store. Twice in that period, it was named
Best Department Store in the World by its peers.

Mr Alexander Manson, 11 July 2022 — present

Alexander (Sandy) Manson trained and qualified as a Chartered Accountant with Arthur Andersen in Edinburgh
in 1985 and in 1991 joined Johnston Carmichael Chartered Accountants as an Associate. He was promoted to
Partner in 1993 and became the Managing Partner of their Aberdeen office. In 2007 he was appointed Chief
Executive of fohnston Carmichael and Chair in 2019. Sandy retired from Johnston Carmichael on 31 May 2022 -
following which he plans to build a NXD portfolio. Sandy was appointed a member of the Council of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland {ICAS) in 2011 and elected President 2018/19. In 2020, he was
appointed by Her Majesty The Queen as Lord-Lieutenant of Aberdeenshire. He is also Chair of Salvesen
Mindroom Centre, a charity specialising in supporting young people with neurodiversity challenges, and is an
Honorary Professor of the University of Stirling where he sits on the advisory board of the management
school. He is also the former Honorary Dutch Consul for the North of Scotland and Chair of the Development
Trust for the University of Aberdeen.

Mr Ashe Windham, CVO, 1January 2019 - 15 March 2022

Ashe Windham was the Chairman of The Queen Elizabeth Castle of Mey Trust for 22 years, a position he held
until 1st January 2019. When The Prince’s Foundation became the sole Trustee for The Queen Elizabeth Castle
of Mey Trust, Ashe was appointed as a Trustee to the board of the Foundation, As well as serving as a Trustee
of The Prince’s Foundation since January 2019, Ashe is a non-executive Director of EFG Asset Management (UK}
Ltd, and a non-executive Director of Miton UK MicroCap Trust Plc. Ashe chairs The Kyle of Sutheriand District
Salmon Fisheries Board and its associated charitable trust, whilst he also sits on four other charity boards, two
of which he chairs. Ashe served as an Extra Equerry to HRH The Prince of Wales since 2003, Ashe’s career began
as an officer in the British Army. After eleven years in the Irish Guards he joined Barclays de Zoete Wedd (“BZW"}
in 1987, and was appointed a Director of BZW's Equities Division in 1991. He joined Credit Suisse First Boston in
1997 when they acquired BZW's equities business. In 2004 he joined Man Investments as Head of Internal
Communications and in 2007 became Man Group’s Global Head of Internal Communications. In June 2009 he
resigned from Man Group pic to set up a private family office.
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Report of the Trustees for the year ended 31 March 2022 fcontinued)
The Board of Trustees {continued)
Mr James Hooper, 15 September 2018 — 12 October 2021

James Hooper founded the UK office of the Global Heritage Fund in 2007 and served as UK Director until 2021.
The Global Heritage Fund is an international heritage conservancy with headquarters in California, USA. James
founded Historic Productions in 2019, a specialist marketing and resources consultancy for the heritage sector.
He is a qualified solicitor.

Ms Carol Lake, 21 June 2021 — 12 October 2021

Over the past 30 years Carol Lake has held senior positions with a number of major global corporations including
British Telecom, McDonnell Douglas, Cable & Wireless and J.P. Morgan where she has spent the last 21 years.
QOver the course of her career, Carol has had extensive geographic responsibilities including extended on the
ground assignments in Australia and the Caribbean. While at 1.P. Morgan, Carol has held a number of positions
including the Head of Diversity and Inclusion for the Europe, Middle East and Africa Region.

Carol has served on a number of boards and advisory committees for Government, non-profits and academic
institutions including: The Children’s Plan Expert Panel, The Equalities Review, The Race Disparity Advisory
Committee, The Culture Recovery Board {all for the UK Government). She has also been a trustee of the Council
of University College London and advisory council member for the Sutton Trust, the Education Endowment
Foundation and Into University.

She is a passionate supporter of the arts and has served on the boards of Sadler’s Wells, The Young Vic theatre,
The Almeida theatre, Theatre Royal Stratford East and the Battersea Arts Centre. She is currently on the boards
of The Clore Leadership Programme and The Booker Prize Foundation. She joined the board of The Prince’s
Foundation in June 2021,

Carol has been recognised twice in the Powerlist (black leaders) and in the Top 100 BAME leaders in business
{UK). In 2016 she was named as Financial Services Leader of the Year at the Black British Business Awards.
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Report of the Trustees for the year ended 31 March 2022 {continued)
Carbon Audit

From financial years beginning on or after 1 April 2019, large UK companies are required to report publicly on
their UK energy use and carbon emissions within their Directors’ Report. This new requirement has been
implemented by the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) and follows the Energy
Savings Opportunity Scheme (ESOS) guidelines.

During the year to 31 March 2022, The Prince's Foundation contracted the services of Anthesis {UK) Limited to
conduct a carbon audit of The Prince's Foundation group in line with the ESOS guidelines.

The below table and supporting narrative summarise the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR)
disclosure in line with the requirements for a “large” unguoted company, as per The Companies {Directors’
Report) and Limited Liability Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Report) Regulations 2018. The disclosure also
extends beyond the scope of a “large” unquoted company and includes emissions and energy consumption from
the combustion of all fuels on site including LPG, propane, heating oil and gas oil.

Curvent reporting year 1 April 2021 - 31 1 April 2020 - 31
March 2022 March 2021
tocation UK UK
Emissions from the combustion of fuel and operation of facilities
{Scope 1} {tCO2e) 615 361
Emissions from purchase of electricity {tCO2e} (Scope 2) 398 342
Emissions from business travel in rental cars or employee-owned
vehicles where company is responsible for purchasing the fuel 24 6
{tCO2e) (Scope 3)
Total gross emissions based on the above {tCO2e) 1,038 707
Energy consumption used te calculate Scope 1 emissions (kwh)
2,676,460 1,606,539
Energy consumption used to calculate Scope 2 emissions (kwh)
1,874,837 1,465,863
Energy consumption used tQ calculate Scope 3 emissions (KWh)
97,702 22,536
Total energy consumption based on above {kwh) 4,648,598 3,004,938
Intensity ratio: tCO2e (gross Scope 1, 2 + 3) per full-time employee
5.04 3.77

Methodology

Anthesis has calculated the above greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions to cover all material sources of emissions
for which The Prince’s Foundation is responsible. The methodology used was that of the Greenhouse Gas
Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard {revised edition, 2015). Responsibility for emissions
sources was determined using the operaticnal control approach. All emissions sources required under The
Companies (Directors’ Report} and Limited Liability Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Report) Regulations 2018
are included.

Raw data in the form of invoices and expense claims forms were gathered by The Prince’s Foundation
and collated in a spreadsheet. Energy was converted to greenhouse gas estimates using the UK Government’s
GHG Conversion Factors for Company Reporting 2021.
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Report of the Trustees for the year ended 31 March 2022 (continued)
Carbon Audit {continued)}
Energy Efficiency Action

The Prince’s Foundation

Qver the last year the Foundation's property portfolio has grown by entering into new leases at the Garrison
Chapel and for properties on the Highgrove Estate. The addition of these properties has caused our use in
electricity to increase. Properties are heated by ground or air source heat pumps with the larger building being
heated by biomass boilers. We continue to carry out energy saving initiatives across the portfolio. LED lighting
has been introduced to all Foundation buildings.

An electric vehicle has been introduced as a trial to help reduce the reliance on fossil fuels, Petrol powered tools
have been changed to rechargeable battery tools again reducing the reliance of fossil fuels to power them.

Video conferencing facilities have been introduced widely across the organisation to reduce the need for some
business travel.

The Foundation continues to develop our green spaces with around 2000 trees and hedgerow planted over the
last 12 months,

Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) factors

The Prince's Foundation is committed to a process of continuous review and improvement of its environmental,
social and governance performance. The Foundation applies the principles of Harmony {our President's
initiative) and sustainability in its actions, including our investments, and we have implermented an ESG policy
with each of our investment managers. From a governance perspective the Foundation is committed to
upholding the highest standards of professional conduct and compliance. During the financial year the Trustees
commissioned a governance review and are in the process of implementing its recommendations.
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Report of the Trustees for the year ended 31 March 2022 {continued)
Disclosure of information to the auditor

The Trustees who held office at the date of approval of this Trustees' report, confirm that, so far as they are
each aware, there is no refevant audit information of which the Foundation’s auditor is unaware; and each
Trustee has taken all reasonahle steps, as a Trustee, to make him or her aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the Foundation’s auditor is aware of that information.

Reference and Administrative Information

Charity name The Prince’s Foundatien
Charity registration number $C038770
Company registration number 5C331738
Registered offices Dumfries House
Cumnock
Ayrshire
KA18 2N)
President His Majesty, King Charles Il
Vice President . The Rt Hon The Earl of Snowdon
Trustees Dame Susan Bruce (Chair from 15 September 2021)

Mr Douglas Connell (Chair from 23 March 2021 to 15 September
2021) {Resigned 15 September 2021)

Mr James Hooper {Resigned 12 October 2021)

Mr George Richards

Mr Ashe Windham {Resigned 15 March 2022)

Mrs Rosemary Hilary (Appointed 21 June 2021}

Mr Michael Jary {Appointed 21 June 2021)

Ms Carol Lake {Appointed 21 June 2021 - Resigned 12 October 2021)
Dame Ann Limb (Appointed 21 June 2021}

Cavaliere Federico Marchetti {Appointed 21 June 2021)

Ms Sarah de Gay {Appointed 12 October 2021)

Mr Ewan Venters (Appointed 15 March 2022)

Mr Alexander Manson (Appointed 11 tuly 2022)
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Report of the Trustees for the year ended 31 March 2022 (coﬁtinued) .

Reference and Administrative Information {continued)

Senior Management Team

Bankers

Auditors

Solicitors

Mr Michael Fawcett, Chief Executive Officer (Temporarily stood
aside 4 September 2021; Resigned 8 November 2021)

Mrs Emily Cherrington, Acting Chief Executive Officer {(Appointed 4
September 2021), previously Chief Operating Officer

Mr Kieran Ferguson, CFA, Chief Financial Officer

Mr Gordon Neil, Executive Director {Estates)

Mr Simon Sadinsky, Executive Director {Education)

Mr Constantine Innemee, Executive Director (Highgrove)

Mr Aaron Davis, Executive Director {Architecture & Heritage)

Mr Chris Martin, Executive Director (Development) {Temporarily
stood aside 13 September 2021; Resigned 24 December 2021}

Miss Shirley Farquhar, Administrator of The Queen Elizabeth Castle
of Mey Trust '

Mr Khaled Azzam, Director of The Prince’s Foundation School of
Traditional Arts

Mr Kim Hitch, Director of Projects {Architecture & Heritage)

Mrs Lucy Campbell, CA, Director of Finance
Ms Jacqueline Farreli, Education Director

Mr Daniel McAuliffe, Education Director {Education Hubs}

Coutts & Co
440, The Strand
London

WCZR 0Q5

Saffery Champness LLP
133 Fountainbridge
Edinburgh

EH3 9BA

McCarthy Denning Limited
Minster House

42 Mincing Lane

London

EC3R 7AE
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Statement of Trustees' responsibilities in respect of the Trustees' report and the financial statements

The Trustees {who are also directors of The Prince's Foundation for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Annual Report (including the Strategic Report) and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard FRS 102 'The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year, which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and the group and of the incoming resources and
application of resources, including the income and expenditure, of the charitable company and group for that
period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
chserve the methods and principles in the Charities SORP (FRS 102);
s  make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
s state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
depantures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and )
+ prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the group and the charitable company will continue its activities.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the charitable company and the group and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006, the Charities and Trustee Investment {Scotland} Act
2005 and the Charities Accounts {Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended). They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and the group and hence for taking reasonabie steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

In 50 far as the Trustees are aware:

¢ there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditor is unaware; and
s the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information. ’

By order of the Board of Trustees:

Goneton M

Dame Susan Bruce
Chair
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Trustees of The Prince's Foundation
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Prince’s Foundation {the 'parent charitable company') and its
subsidiaries (the ‘group'} for the year ended 31 March 2022 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Activities, the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Foundation Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement, the Foundation Cash Flow Statement, and notes to the financial statements, including significant
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable
law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102, the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice).

in our opinion the financial statements;

e give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and parent charitable company’s affairs as at 31
March 2022, and of the group’s and parent charitable company’s incoming resources and application
of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

s have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

¢ have been prepared in accordance with the reguirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities and
Trustee Investment {Scotland) Act 2005 and regulations 6 and 8 of the Charities Accounts {Scotland)
Regulations 2006{as amended); and

* meet the requirements of the Accounts Direction 2019 issued by the Office for Students.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) {ISAs (UK)} and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the group and parent charitable
company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concemn

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. ;

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the parent charitable company's ability
to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are
authorised for issue. '

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to gaing concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Trustees of The Prince's Foundation {continued)
Emphasis of matter - significant events and contingent liabilities

in forming our opinion on the financial statements, which is not qualified, we have considered the adequacy of
the disclosures made in note 29 to the financial statements concerning significant events and contingent
liabilities arising from press reports into historic fundraising practices at The Prince’s Foundation in relation to
certain donations historically received by the Foundation Group. Following these press reports the Office of the
Scottish Charity Regulator {OSCR) opened an investigation into the Foundation and its governance. Trustees are
also aware that the Metropolitan Police are conducting an investigation into allegations of offences under the
Honours (Prevention of Abuses) Act 1925. The Trustees asked their legal advisors to appoint investigatory
accountants in relation to the press reports and having taken legal advice at the date of approval of the financial
statements are satisfied that the findings of the report do not result in a material financial exposure to the
Foundation which would require adjustment to or additional disclosure within the Foundation's financial
statements. At the date of approval of the financial statements these investigations are ongoing. '

Other information

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Qur opinion
on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Qur responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. if we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. i, based on the werk we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
We are required to report on the following matters issued by the Office for Students (OfS).
In our opinion, in all material respects:

+ funds from whatever source administered by the provider for specific purposes have been properly
applied to those purposes and managed in accordance with relevant legislation;

+» funds provided by the OfS and Research England have been applied in accordance with the relevant
terms and conditions; and

* the requirements of the OfS’s accounts direction have been met.
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Trustees of The Prince's Foundation {continued)
Other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our apinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

s the information given in the Trustees’ Annual Report which inciudes the Directors’ Report and the
Strategic Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are preparedis consistent with
the financial statements; and

¢ the Trustees’ Annual Report which includes the Directors’ Report and the Strategic Report has been
prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and parent charitable company and their
envirenment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees’
Annual Report and Strategic Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 and
the Charities Accounts {Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended) require us to report to you if, in our opinion:

» adequate and proper accounting records have not been kept by the parent charitable company, or
returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

¢ the parent charitable company s financial statements are notin agreement with the accounting records
and returns; or
centain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We are required to report by exception, the following matters by the Accounts Direction 2019 issued by the

Office for Students:
: ;

» grant and fee income, as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, has been materially misstated; or
+ expenditure on access and participation activities for the financial year has been materially misstated.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees Responsibilities (set out on page 30}, the Trustees (who are
also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial staterments that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the group and parent charitable
company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the group or the parent
charitable company or to cease oparations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Trustees of The Prince’s Foundation (continued)
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

We have been appointed as auditors under the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005 and under
the Companies Act 2006 and report in accordance with regulations made under those Acts.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the group and parent financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with I1SAs (UK} will always detect a material misstatement when it exists
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

trregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The specific procedures for this engagement and the extent to which these are capable of
detecting irregularities, including fraud are detailed below.

Identifying and assessing risks related to irregularities:

We assessed the susceptibility of the group and parent charitable company’s financial statements to material
misstatement and how fraud might occur, including through discussions with the Trustees, discussions within

our audit team planning meeting, updating our record of internal controls and ensuring these controls operated
as intended. We evaluated possible incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial
statements. We identified laws and regulations that are of significance in the context of the group and parent
charitable company by discussions with Trustees, and updating our understanding of the sectors in which the
group and parent charitable company operate.

Laws and regulations of direct significance in the context of the group and parent charitable company include
The Companies Act 2006, the Charities and Trustee Investment [Scotland} Act 2005, the Education Reform Act
1988, the OfS Accounts Direction 2019, the Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended) and
guidance issued by the Office of the Scottish Charity Regulator.

Audit response to risks identified:

We considered the extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our audit procedures on the
related financial statement items including a review of financial statement disdosures. We reviewed the parent
charitable company’s records of breaches of laws and regulations, minutes of meetings and correspondence
with relevant authorities to identify potential material misstatements arising. We discussed the parent
charitable company’s policies and procedures for compliance with. laws -and regulations with members of
management responsible for compliance.

During the planning meeting with the audit team, the engagement partner drew attention to the key areas which
might involve non-compliance with laws and regulations or fraud. We enquired of management whether they
were aware of any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations or knowledge of any actual, suspected
or alleged fraud. We addressed the risk of fraud through management override of controls by testing the
appropriateness of journal entries and identifying any significant transactions that were unusual or outside the
normal course of business.
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Trustees of The Prince's Foundation {continued)
Audit response to risks identified: {continued)

We assessed whether judgements made in making accounting estimates gave rise to a possible indication of
management bias. At the completion stage of the audit, the engagement partner’s review included ensuring
that the team had approached their work with appropriate professional scepticism and thus the capacity to
identify non-compliance with laws and regulations and fraud.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the further removed non-compliance
with Jaws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely
we would become aware of it. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than
the risk of not detecting one resuiting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example,
forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion,

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
Report of the Independent Auditors.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006, and to the charitable company's Trustees, as a body, in accordance with
Regulation 10 of the Charities Accounts {Scotland) Regulations 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the charitable company’s members and Trustees those matters we are required to state
te them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.

To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
charitable company, the charitable company’s members as a body and the charitable company's Trustees as a
body, for our audit worl, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

‘__,.--—"'H

Kenneth McDowell [Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Saffery Champness LLP
Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditors

133 Fountzinbridge

Edinburgh

EH3 9BA

Date: Q\\GU(OQM*Q'DQ'L

Saffery Champness Audit Services is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of section 1212 of the Companies Act
2006.
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Consolidated statement of finandal activities
{incorporating an income and expenditure account)
For the year ended 31 March 2022
Notes General Restricted Endowment Total Total
Funds Funds Funds 2022 200
£ E £ £ £
tncome and endowments from:
Donations and legracies
Donations 2 6,006,227 7,931,138 - 14,027,365 17,641,693
Grants and gift in kind 3 2,500 497,500 - 500,000 251,067
Other trading activitles
Rental income 63,442 - - 63,442 58,704
Consultancy income 1,269,899 ' - - 1,269,899 464,484
Dumfries House Trust Trading Limitad 2,012,614 - - 2,012,614 302,359
AG Carvick Limited 2,849,869 - - 2,849,869 ] -
Dumfries House Home Farm Limited 359,524 - - 359,524 393,213
Dumfries Farming & Land Limited 1,749 - - 1,749 -
Community Capital Limited 64,789 - - 54,789 413,845
Castle & Gardens of Mey Limited 265,433 - - 265,433 57.581
Education intome 514,271 - - 514,271 423,263
The Queen Elizabeth Castle of Mey Trust 311,147 - - 111,147 ' 248,613
investment lncome 16 8,656 - 157,618 166,274 165,680
Orther income 4 70,549 - - 70,549 215,335
Toral 13,890,669 8,428,638 157,618 22,476,925 20,636,241
Expenditure on:
Raising funds
Building costs 5 {254,735) - - (254,735) [163,700)
Portfolio management costs 5 {7.501) . {32,202) (39,703) (47,135)
Dumfries House Trust Trading Limited 5 (2,274,733) - - {2,274,733) {1,773,794)
AG Carrick Limited 5 {2,291,703) - - {2,291,703) -
Dumfries Howse Home Farm Limited 5 {481,861) - - {481,861) (460,474)
Dumfries Farming & Land Limited s {B,390) - - (8,390] (100,271)
Community Capital Limited 5 (72,221} - - {72,221) {343,804)
Castle & Gardens of Mey Limited 5 {341,559} - - [341,559) {217,781}
Fundraising costs 5 {189,315} {51,193} - {240,508) {142,140}
S (5,922,018} (51,193} {32,202) (6,005,413} (3.189,095)
Charitable activities
Wages & salaries 6, 10 (3,336,958) {2,654,728) - {5,991,686) {4.808,396)
Administration costs 6 (73,367 - - [73,367) [45,029)
Exhibition & promotion costs 6 {305,878) {86,053) - {391,939) [238,659)
Preservation of contents ] {519,752) {9,574) - {529.326) (964,121)
Restaration of buildings 6 (1,215,755) {401,051} (37,964} (1,654,770} (1,656,083}
Maintenance of the estate & {1,095,864) {614,478} - (1,710,342) {913,733}
Education 6 (669,580} [718,953) - (1,388,533} {661,755}
Cormmunity events 6 - (37.352) - {37,352) 40,571}
Patronage & heritage costs & (60.491) (38,944} - {99,435) (77,7370
Donations made 6.8 - (285,098) - (285,098) (619,510)
The Queen Elizabeth Castle of Mey Trust 6 (568,289) {65,434) - (633,723) [578,650)
{7,845,932) (4,911,675} {37,964) (12,795,571) (10,104, 244)
Other resources expended
Gains/{losses) on fixed asset disposal 5.802 - - 5,802 {962,158}
5.802 - - 5,802 {962,158}
Governance costs 7 (905,968) {98,222) - 11,004,190} {652,414}
Total expenses [14,668,116) [5,061,090) (70,166} {19,759,372) (14,907,915}
Met gains/ilosses) on investments 24,467 - 57,331 81,798 197,362
Change in market value of i 29,746 - 417,171 446,917 959,533
Net income/fiexpenditure
for the year bef tion and i {723,234) 3,367,548 561,954 3,206,268 6,885,221
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= fidated of financial activities
{incorporating an inceme and expenditure account) {continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes General Restricted Endowment Total Total
Funds Funds Funds 022 2021
£ £ £ £ £

Net income/{expenditure}
for the year before transfers {723,234) 3,367,548 561,954 3,206,268 6,885,221
Gross transfers between funds 3,821 340 (3,814,185) {7,155) - -
Transfer - invest t dishur 156,000 + {156,000} - -
Total transfers betweep funds 8 3,977,340 {3,814,185) (163,155) - -
Net movements in funds 3,254,106 {446,637) 398,799 3,206,268 5,885,221
Reconcliiation of funds:
Fund balances at 1 April 2021 20,21 41,855,033 13,839,067 70,714,181 126,408,281 119,523,060
Net movements in funds 3,254,106 [446,637) 398,799 3,206,268 6,885,221
Fund balances at 31 March 2022 20,21 45,109,133 13,392,430 71,112,580 125,614,549 126,408,281

For the current and previous years, all activities arise from continuing operations.

The net income for the period for Companies Act purposes, comprising net incoming f outgoing resources before other recognised gains and losses on
permanent endowrments, totals £2,731, 766 (2021; £5,981,5039}.

The notes on pages 42 to 76 form part of these financial statements.,
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Consolidated balance sheet
ot 31 March 2022

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Heritage assets
Other tangible assets
Investments

Current assets

Stock

Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within
onhe year

Net current {liabilities}/ assets

Total assets bess current {lkabilities) / assets
Creditors: amounts falling due after

more than one year

Net assets

Funds

General

Restricted
Endowment

Nates

13
14
15
16

17

19

19

20
2
20

The Prince’s Foundation

Trustees' report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2022

General Restricted Endowment Total Total
Funds Funds Funds 2022 2021
£ £ £ £ 13

1,349 - 50,500 51,849 52,045
1,000,000 - 50,751,527 61,751,527 51,751,527
34,695,544 6,756,233 3,618,793 45,074,620 42,703,936
951,516 - 6,700,354 7,651,870 7,174,404
36,652,459 6,755,233 1,121,174 114,529,866 111,681,916
1,629,989 - - 1,629,989 1,270,558
1,171,408 - - 1,171,408 738,348
9,853,559 6,636,197 - 16,489,756 14,902,523
12,654,956 6,636,197 - 19,291,153 16,911,429
4,165,030} - - {8,194} {4.173,224) [2,168,761)
8,489,926 6,636,197 {8,194) 15,117,929 14,742,668
45,142,385 13,392,430 71,112,980 129,647,795 126,424,584
{31,246} - - (33,246) (16,303}
45,109,139 13,392,430 71,112,980 129,614,549 126,408,281
45,109,139 41,855,033
13,352,430 13,839,067
71,112,980 70,714,181
129,614,549 126,408,281

The notes on pages 42 to 76 form part of these financial statements.

These financial statements were approved by the Trustees m@/‘{i . ............ and were signed on their behalf by:

b b .

Dame Susan Sruce
Choir

Mrs Emlly Cherrington
Accountable Officer (OF5)
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Foundation balanca sheet
ot 31 March 2022
General Restricted Endowment Total Tatal
Notes Funds Funds Funds 2022 2021
£ £ £ £ [

Fined Assets
Intangibie assets 13 - - 50,500 50,500 50,500
Heritage assets 13 . - 60,751,517 60,751,527 60,751,527
Other tangible assers 15 24,835,363 6,756,233 3,618,793 35,210,389 31,468,068
Investments 16 991,607 - 5,700,354 7,691,961 6,264,014

25,826,970 6,756,233 71,121,174 103,704,377 98,534,109
Current assets
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year 18 3,644,873 - - 3,644,873 4,311,894
Cash at bank 8,007,337 6,598,627 - 14,605,964 13,446,284

11,652,210 6,598,627 - 18,250,837 17,758,178
Creditors: amounts falling due within
one year ) 19 (2,513,181} . {8,194} [2,521,375] {1,692,384)
Net curvent (Mabllivies)/ assets 9,139,029 6,598,627 {B,194) 15,729,452 16,065,794
Total assets less curvent {llabilities) / assets 34,965,599 13,354,860 71,112,980 119,433,839 114,599,503
Creditors: amounts falling due after
mare than one year 19 - - - - (2,678}
Net azsets 34,965,99% 13,354,850 71,112,980 119,433,829 114,597,325
Funds
General 20 34,965,990 30,322,538
Restricted i1} 13,354,860 13,560,505
Endowment 20 71,112,960 70,714,181

119,433,839 114,587,225

The notes on pages 42 to 76 form part of these financial statements.

Thesea financial were app d by the Trustees on 7. “ et eecerreeern Y weEwe signed on theiv behalf by
W » o

Dame $usan Bruce Mrs Emily Cherringtar “"—-—‘
Chair Accountahle Officer {Of5)
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Consolidated cash flow statement

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Cash Row statement Notes
Cash Rows from operating activities i
Interest pald

Interest element of hire purchase and finance fease rental

Net cash provided by jusedin} operating activitl

Eashi f P P

Purchase of tangible fixed assets 15
Proceeds on disposal of tangible fued assets

Purchase of fiked asset investments 16
Proceeds on disposal of fixed asset invesiments 15
Net cash moverment in investrments 16
Introduction of funds on acquisition of subsidiaries

Investment income 16

Net cash provided by [used in] ii ting activities

Cash flow from financing activities
New hire purchase contracts
R «of capital el of hire purchase contracts

Net cash flow from financing activities

Change in cash and cash equivak in the reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents ot the beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents st the end of the period i 23

Nete i Reconciliation of net income/lexpenditure) to net cash flow from aperating activities

Net income/f | expenditure) for the reporting period {as per the statement of financial activities}
Adjustments for:

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment charges 13,15
Interest paid

Interest element of hire purchase and finance lease rental

Purchase of tangible assets on acquisition of subsidt

(Gains)fLosses on disposal of fixed asset i

[Gains)fLosses on investments 16
Investment income 156
[Increase)/decrease in stock 17
[Increase)/decrease in debtors 18
[Decreaselfingrease in creditors excluding averdraft & hire purchase 19

Net cash provided by (used in) operating sctivitl

Mote i
Recondliation of net cash flow

Increasef{Decrease) in cash in the period

Net cash at start of the year
Movement in net funds in the period 23
Het cash at the end of the year 3
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2022 201
£ £
5,820,917 8,377,162
{2,422) {11,415}
{(M39) {2,208}
5,817,776 8,363,535
{4,522,046) (1,551,448}
50,406 -
(2,021,194} (1,638,728)
1,983,534 2,191,360
84,486 133,278
166,274 -
- 165,680
{4,258,540) {699,858}
234,008 146,621
{206,011} (162,686)
27,997 (16,065)
1,587,233 7,647,612
14,502,523 7,254,911
16,489,756 14,902,523
3,206,268 6,885,221
2,291,057 2,157,449
2,422 11,419
19 2,208
{173,020} -
{16,819} 970,453
(524,292) 11,156,895)
(166,274} (165,680)
(359,431} 97,598
(433,050 86,064
1,993,408 (510,675)
5,820,917 8,377,162
1,587,233 7,647,612
14,902,523 7,254,911
1,587,233 7,647,612
16,489,756 14,902,523




Foundatlon cash flow statement

For the yeor ended 31 March 2022

Cash flow statement Notes
Cash flows from opersting activities i
Interest paid

Interest element of hire purchase and finance lease rental
Net cash provided by [used in) operating activities

Cashflows from investing activitics

Purchase of tangible fixed assets 15
Proceeds on disposal of tangible fixed assets

furchase of fixed asset investments 16
Praceeds an disposal of fixed asset investments 16
Net cash me ini 16
Investment income 16

Net cash provided by {used in) investing activities

Cash flow from flnancing activitles

Hew hire purchase contracts

Repayment of capital element of hire purchase contracts

Net cash flow from financing activities

Change In cash and cash equivalents in the reparting perlod

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period il 23

Note i Reconciliation of net income/{enpenditure} to net cash Now from operating activities

Net income/f | expenditure) for the reporting period (as per the statement of financial activitles)
Adjustments for:

Depreciation, amortisation and impai charges 13,15
Interest paid

Interest element of hire purchase and finance lease rental

[Gains)/Losses on disposal of fixed asset

[Gains)fLosses on investments 16
Investment income 16
Exceptional income

Decreasef{increase) in debtors 18
[Decrease)fincrease in creditors axcluding overdraft & hire purchase 19

Net cash providad by (used in) operating activities

Note il
Reconciliation of net cash flow

Increasef{Decrease} in cash in the perlod

Net cash at start of the year
Movement in nef funds In the period 3
Net cash at the end of the year 23
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2022 2021
£ E
6,559,168 7,605,743
{2,422) {10,118)
719 [569)
6,556,027 7,595,056
{5,774,032) {589,087}
185,910 .
{1,440,941} (634,472)
1,428,003 742,165
51,005 123.777)
157,618 71,245
(5,392,347} (493,926)
189,727 146,621
{193,727) [149.456)
{4,000) (2,835}
1,159,680 7,098,295
13,446,284 6,347,989
14,605,964 13,446,284
4,836,617 12,016,522
1,851,606 1,806,164
2,422 10,118
719 569
(5,806} 962,153
(474,502} [324,181)
{157,618) {71,245)
{991,602) {4,256,765)
667,021 (2,132,808}
230,311 (394,594)
6,559,168 7,605,743
1,159,680 7,098,295
13,446,284 6,347,989
1,159,680 7,098,295
14,605,964 13,446,284
]
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Notes
{forming part of the financial statements}

1 Accounting policles

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material in refation to both the Group's and
Foundation's financial statements.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the charitable company, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared in accordance with the Charities S0RP (FRS
102) "Ac¢ounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland {FRS 102} {effective 1 January 2013}, Financial Reporting Standard 102 "The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Companies Act 2006 and the Charities and Trustee Investment {Scotland} Act 2005. The financia!
statements have been prepared under the historic cost convention rules modified to indude revaluation of land and buildings, investments and sporting rights, and
on the going concern basis.

Golng Concern
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable scocounting standards on a going concern basis which assumes the Foundation will

continue to trade for a period of 12 months from the date of approval by the Trustees. The Trustees consider there to be no material uncertainties regarding the
charity's ability 1o continue as a going concern given current bank balances, donaor pipeline and the availability of bank overdraft fadilities.

When considering the going n status of the Foundation the Trustees are mindful of in year events and the risks to the Foundation as reported in Note 29,

Against this background and the Trustee assessment of these reported risks, the Trustees have prepared and approved up to date company and group management

accounys, budgets and cash Row projections, which include key income and cost ptians including ongoing support from core donors and trading surpluses that
the Trustees consider reasanable and prudent. Whilst not currently being utilised, the Trustees also renewed bank overdraft arrang ts during September 2022
for a further 12 months.

Having considered the above matters, the Trustees are of the view that, at the date of approval of the financial stat: 15, the Foundation will have sufficient
financial resources, donor support and the necessary ongoing bank arrang is ta conti to deliver the group’s objectives and to meet dehis as they fall due for
the foreseeable future. The financial st have therefore been pregared on a going concern basis.

The financial st are p d in Sterling and are rounded to the nearest pound.
Company status
The Foundation is a private company limited by guarantee. The bers of the Foundation are the Board of Trustees named on pages 28. The country of

incorporation and registration numbers are detailed in the Trustees repart on page 28. In the event of the charity being wound up, the Hability in respect of the
guarantee is limited to £10 per member of the charity.

Basis of consolidation
The consalidated financial statements include the Rnancial statements of the Foundation and its subsidiary undertakings.
The financial statements of its subsidiary entities:

« Dumfries House Trust Trading Limited

- AG Carrick Limited

- Dumfries House Home Farm Limited

- Dumfries House Farming and Land Limited

« The Prince's Feundation for Building Community
+ Community Capital Limited

- The Prince’s Regeneration Trust

- The Prince’s School of Traditional Arts

« The Queen Elizabeth Castle of Mey Trust

« Castle and Gardens of Mey Limited

have been fylty consolidated on a line by line basis in accordance with FRS 102 from the date that they became part of the Group.
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MNotes [continued)
1 Accounting polleies {continued)

Basis of consolidavion fcontinued)

Business combinations are accounted for under the purchase method. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with thase used by the Group. Al intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
" d on .

In the Foundation®s financial ts, the i t in its subsidiaries are stated at cost or book value.

Critleal ting Jud) and key of estimation uncertainty

in the application of the charity's accounting policies, the Trustee's are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other Factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which
the estimate is revised where the revision affects only that perlod, or in the pertod of the revision and future periods where the revision affects both
current and future periads.

Funds
The Foundation maintains three types of fung: -
- General funds

- Endowment funds
- festricted funds

General funds are unrestricted funds which are available for use for any purpose at the disaretion of the Trustees in furtherance of the general
objectives of the charity,

Endowment funds represent heritage assets which are recognised and valued in line with the Foundation's fixed asset policies. Endowment funds also
represent investments held in trust from which income is derived to support either the general activities of the charity or activities specifically identified
by the retevant trust. The Trustees have power of discretion to convert endowed capital into unrestricted income, 5ee note 28,

Restricted funds are those donations received to which specific terms and conditions over the application of these funds are attached by the donor.
income

Al incoming resources are included in the statement of financial activities once the Foundation has entith ta the funds, it is probable that the
income will be received and the amount can be measured reasonably.

The following policies are applied to particular categories of income:
Income and endowments from:

Donations and donated services

Donations receivable for the general purposes of the Foundation are credited to General funds, Restricted donations are accounted for as restricted
funds matched against the related expenditure,

Where services that would normally be purchased from the Foundation's suppliers are provided as a donatian, this contribution Js included in the
financial st s 3t an esti based on the value of the contribution to the Foundation.

Grants and gifts in kind

Income is recognised as a grant if formal paperwork is in place, an application process has been follawed leading ta a grant award being made, which is
usually a competitive process with ¢conditions attached, and the funds have been arrived at independently and not via connected organisations. Income
recognition treatiment takes grant conditions into account and income is deferred if specific conditions have nat been met.

Gifs to the Foundation of fixed assets are recognised as incoming resources and within the retevant fixed asset category of the balance sheet when
receivabibe, at an estimate of their gross value to the Foundation. Other gifts in kind [such as donations of time) are included within donated services.
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Notes {continued)

1 Accounting policles (continued)
Inceme [continued)

Other trading activities

Income from Dumfries House Trust Trading Limited includes the Dumfries House shop, café and restaurant, the Rothesay Rooms restaurant in
Ballater, the Swimming Pool and Town Hall facilities in New Cumnock, as well as Dumfries House admissions, functions and income from a bed 2nd
breakfast business and House tours within Dumfries House Estate. income from other commercial activities is recognised in the period in which it is
received. Other commercial income received is recognised on entitlement.

Incame from AG Carrick Limited includes shop, café and restaurant and garden tour income at the Highgrove Estate. Other income received
through Dumfries House Trust Trading Limited is recognised on entitlement. Other commercial income received is recognised on entitlement.

Income from Dumfries House Home Farm Limited is rental income accounted for on an aceruals basis and Income from livestock sales is recognised
in the period in which it is received.

Incame from Dumfries Farming & Land Limited represents grazing rent income paid to Dumfries Farming & Land Limited.

Income from Cc ity Capital Limited represents income in respect of architectural and building consultancy services during the period.

Income from Castle and Gardens of Mey represents income in respect of net sales of bed and breakfast bookings, shop purchases and tea-room
goods for the Castle of Mey.

Education income represents income fram Education activities delivered across the charity's locations. This includes activities previously
undertaken by The Prince’s Foundation for Building Community and The Prince’s School of Traditional Arts.

Investment income

Interest receivable is credited to income in the period to which it relates and is recarded in General funds.

Dividend income from investments held at market value are recognised when they are received.

In 2022, £300,000 of gift aid was received from subsidiaries (2021: £58,580).

Expenditure

Liabilities are recognised as expenditure as soon as there is a legal or constructive obligation committing the charity to that expenditure, it is
probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

Expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and has been classified under headings that aggregate all cost related 1o the category. Where
casts cannot be directly attributed to particular headings, they have been allocated to activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources.

Resources expended:

Raising funds represents direct costs of the Foundation's subsidiary operations, rent, portfolio management and fundraising activity.

Charitable activities represents direct costs of operating and maintaining Dumfries House and Estate, The Queen Elizabeth Castte of Mey
Trust, operational costs of Charlotte Road, London, and the costs incurred by staff to support delivery of gur charitable
objectives.

Governance costs represents costs incurred in connection with the general running of the charity as opposed to the management and

administration of its activities, including costs relating to statutory compliance.

Other resources expended represents gains and losses on asset disposals.
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Notes {continued]
1 Accounting policies {continued)
Expenditure (continued)

Resources expended in the statement of financial activities include support costs of running the Foundation. These are charged as
charitable expenditure or other costs as appropriate, being expenses incurred in the ordinary operations of the Foundation.

Support costs are allocated to the categories of charitable activities on a pro-rata basis if it is not possible to allocate the costson a
specific basis.

The costs of conservation, restoration and preservation of endowment assets are charged to the endowment fund.
Heritage assets
The heritage assets within the Foundation are accounted for by applying the principles of accounting standard FRS 102,

Heritage assets comprise Dumfries House, the stables and coach house and the contents of bumfries House, many of which date
back to the commissioning of the House in the 1750s, which are held in support of the Foundation's primary objective of
preserving the collection for the nation and providing reasonable public access teit, as a contribution to the nation's culture and
education, both nationally and locally.

The House coltection is reported in the balance sheet at a valuation when receiver.

A valuation of Dumfries House, the stables and coach house on the basis of market value was performed by Stanley Wright,
Chartered Surveyors, on 28 March 2017, in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Standards published by the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors {the Red Book).

A valuation of the House contents has been based on an external valuation carried gut by Lyon and Turnbull, auctioneers, for audit
purposes on 29 March 2017, The valuation was based on similar previous sale estimates and results.

A valuation of sporting rights was carried out on the basis of market value by Stanley Wright, as at 28 March 2017,

Heritage assets from The Queen Elizabeth Castle of Mey Trust relate to the Castle of Mey, which was gifted by the late Her
Majesty Queen Elizabeth The Queen Maother to The Queen Elizabeth Castle of Mey Trust on its inception in 1996.

The Castle is inspected on a regular basis and any work required is brought to the attention of the Trustees. The inspection may be
carried out by the Administrator who oversees the property and its use. The Castle was revalued by the Trustees on 31 December
2010 at £1,000,000.

Expenditure which, in the Trustees' view, is required to preserve or prevent further deterioration of individual collection items is
recognised in the income and expenditure account when it is incurred, as part of the Foundation's charitable activities.
Expenditure which, in the Trustees' view, adds to the value of individual items is capitalised, in accordance with FR5 102. Dueto a
continuous restoration programme, the heritage assets are subject to an annual impgirment review rather than amounts being
depreciated on a systematic basis.

Heritage assets are accounted for in note 14,
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Notes (continued}
1 Accounting policies {continued)
Trademarks

Trademarks are capitalised where there is expected to be a benefit to future periods and the following conditions are met:

i] it is technically feasible to complete the research or development so that the product will be available for use or sale;

ii) it is intended to use or sell the product being developed;

iii) the Charity is able to use or sell the product;

iv) it can be demonstrated that the product will generate probable future economic benefits;

v} adequate technical, financial and other resources exist so that product development can be completed and subsequentdy used or sold; and
vi) expenditure attributable to the research and development work can be reliably measured.

Capitalised trademarks are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses and amortised over its useful economic life.
Assessments of useful economic life are 10 years.

Tanglble fixed assets [excluding heritage assets) and depreciation

tand and buildings are stated at market value, defined as "the estimated amount for which a property should exchange on the date of valuation
between a willing buyer and seller in an arm'’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently
and without compulsion”, Where a Land and buildings asset has not been revalued it is stated at cost less depreciation. The need for impairment is
considered every year. Should the value of assets be deemed impaired or appreciated due to a change in market conditions or condition of the asset,
then a professional valuation will be carried out by independent valuer from a relevant specialism, The last valuation took place in 2017. The Board
have considered the need for further revaluations and deemed it not necessary at this point. The current value of the assets is deemed reflective of
their carrying value in line with FRS 102.

Market valuations are carried out in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuations Standards published by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors
(the Red Book).

Castle furnishings at The Queen Elizabeth Castle of Mey Trust were revalued by the Trustees on 31 December 2004 which is in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of (reland {FRS 102) {effective 1 January 2019). The waluation basis used by the Trustees
was the market value,

Other tangible fixed assets are stated at historic cost,

The Princes's Foundation holds a 125 year lease on property at Highgrove estate. Leasehold property and all refating assets are depreciated in line with
the useful life of the asset as noted in the table below.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or valuation less the estimated residual value of tangible fixed assets by equal instalments over their
estimated useful economic lives as follows:

Freehold buildings - Up to 50 years
Leasehold buildings - Up to 50 years
Plant and machinery - 3 to 10 years
Fixtures, fittings, tools and equipment - 2 to 5 years
Motor vehicles . S years
improvements to property . 25 years
improvements to leasehald property - 25 years
Website costs - 5 years

Assets under construction - not provided

No depreciation is provided on freehold land.

Individual purchases of a capital nature below £300 are not usually capitalised.
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Notes {continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued}

Listed investments

investments are a form of basic financial instrument and are initially recognised at their transaction vaiue and subsequently

measured at their fair value as at the balance sheet date using the closing quoted bid price. Any change in fair value will be
recognised in the statement of financial activities,

Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Livestock is valued within the accounts at fair value which includes any future costs to bring the stock to the point of sale.
Land within stock is stated at its revalued amount.

Debitors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount due after any trade discount offered. Prepayments are valued at
the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

Cash at bank and in hand
Cash at bank and in hand are basic financiat assets and include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term

liguid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities.

Creditors
Creditors are recognised where the charity has a present obligation resulting from a past event that will prebably resultin the

transfer of funds to a third party and the amount due to settle the obligation can be measured or estimated reliably. Creditors are
normally recognised at their settlement amount after allowing for any trade discounts due.

Leases '

Assets obtained under hire purchase contracts or finance leases are capitalised in the balance sheet. Those held under hire
purchase contracts are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Operating lease rentals are charged to the statement of financial activities on a straight line basis over the period of the lease, with
the exception of the leasehold properties which are depreciated cver 50 years.

Pensions

The Foundation operates a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions payable to the Foundation's pension scheme are
charged to the statement of financial activities in the period to which they relate.
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Notes {continued)
1 Accounting policies (continued)
Taxation

The Foundation is considered to pass the tests set out in Schedule 30 and 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a
charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the Foundation is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or
capital gains received within the categories covered in Chapter 3 Part 11 Corporation Tax Act 2010 to the extent that such income or gains are
applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

The company's trading activities, which are undertaken by the subsidiary companies Dumfries House Trust Trading Limited, AG Carrick Limited,
Dumfries House Home Farm Limited, Dumfries Farming and Land Limited, Community Capital Limited and Castle and Gardens of Mey Limited
are not exempt from UK taxation. However, the subsidiary companies with the exception of Castle and Gardens of Mey Limited have an
agreement in place to donate all profits to the Foundation through Gift Aid, resulting in no tax liability for these subsidiaries.

The Foundation is registered for Value Added Tax and accordingly, income and expenditure is recognised and reported on a net basis.

Foreign exchange

Transactions in currencies other than pounds sterling are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At each
reporting end date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
reporting end date. Gains and losses arising on translation are included in the statement of financial activities for the period.

Financial Instruments

The charity's financial assets and financial liabilities qualify as basic financial instruments. Basic financial instruments are initially recognised at
transaction value and subsequently measured at their settlement value.

Key judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

in the application of the charity’s accounting palities, the Trustees' are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised where the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods where the revision

affects both current and future periods.

ey judgements that the charitable company has made which have a significant effect on the accounts include the assumptions around the
depreciation period for fixed assets.

The estimates and assumptions which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities are
as foltows.

Valuation of fixed assets and heritage assets
As described in the accounting policies, tand and buildings, heritage assets and castle furnishings are stated at fair value based on the valuation

performed by an independent professional valuers with recent experience in the location and category of assets valued. The valuer used
observable market prices adjusted as necessary for any difference in the future, location or condition of the specific asset.
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2 Donations and legacies

The Prince's Foundation
Trustees' report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2022

General Restricted Total Total
Fund Fund 2022 2021
f £ £ £
Donations received 6,096,227 7,931,138 14,027,365 17,641,693
For prior year funds breakdown please refer to note 11.
3 Grantsand gifts inkind
General Restricted Total Total
Fund Fund 2022 2021
_ £ £ £ £
Grants received
Charitable organisations - 229,500 229,500 133,000
Corporate bodies - 68,000 68,000 40,000
Trusts 2,500 200,000 20¢,500 60,500
Cther - - - 17,567
2,500 497,500 500,000 251,067
For prior year funds breakdown please refer to note 11.
4 Other income
General Restricted Total Total
Fund Fund 2022 2021
£ £ £ £
Health Initiative Income 1,973 - 1,973 1,538
Other Income 68,576 - 68,576 213,801
70,549 - 70,549 215,339

For prior year funds breakdown please refer to note 11,

Page 49



The Prince’s Foundation
Trustees' report and financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

-

Notes fcontinued)

5  Raising funds

General Restricted Endowment Total Total
Fund Fund fund 2022 021
£ £ € £ £
Building costs {254,735) - - {254,735) {163,700
Pertfolio management (7.501) - {32,202) {39,703} (47,135)
Dumfries House Trust Trading costs '
Trading cost of sales {1,834,969) - - {1,834,969) (1,530,281)
Admin costs {435,764) . - - {439,764) {243,513}
{2,274,733) - - (2,274,733) {1,773,754}
AG Carrick trading costs
Trading cost of sales {830,502) - - {830,502) -
Admin costs (1,461,201) - - {1.461,201) -
(2,291,703) - ’ - {2,291,703} ) -
Home Farm costs
Farm cost of sales {247,012) . . {247.012) {206,308)
Admin costs {234,849) - - {234,849} {194,165)
{481,861) - - {481,861) (400,474}
Dumiries Farming & land costs
Admin costs . {8,390} - - {8,390) (10,272}
Stock provision - - - - (89,999)
(8,390) - - (8,390} {100,271)
Community Capital costs
Cost of sales {58,899) - - {58,899} {275,229)
Admin costs (13,322) - - {13,322} {68,575)
{72,221) - - {72,221) {343,804)
Castle & Gardens of Mey costs
Cost of sates {56,995} B X - (56,995) (11,504}
Admin costs {284,564) - - (284,564} {206,277)
{341,559) - - {341,559) {217,781)
Fundvaising costs
Admin costs {114,763) - - {114,763} (69,794)
Costs of raising funds {74,552) {51,193} - {125,745) 72,346}
{189,315} {51,193} - {240,508) (142,140}
{5,922,018} {51,153} {32,202) (6.005,413) (3,189,099)

On 1 July 2021, Fhe Prince’s Foundation acquired AG Carrick Limited. The cost shown above represents the 9 months expenditure from the date of
acquisition.

For prior year funds breakdown please refer to note 11.
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Notes {continued)

6 Charitable activities

Direct Support Total Total
costs Costs 2022 2021
£ £ £ £

General fund
Wages & salaries - {3,336,958) {2,336,958) {3,614,280)
Administration costs - {73,367} {73,367} (42,762)
Exhibition & promotions costs - {205,876) {305,876} {238,659}
Preservation of contents {407,910) {111,842} {519,752} {453,486}
Restoration of buildings - 1,215,755} {1,215,755) 1,197,323}
Maintenance of the estate {1,010,862} {85,002} {1,095,864) {599,743}
Education department {669,580) * - {669,580) (332,035}
Community events - - B -
Patronage and heritage costs {60,491) - {60,491) {24,826)
Donations made - - - {216,474}
The Queen Elizabeth Castle of Mey Trust {222,759) {345,530) {568,289} {567,668}

{2,371,602} (5,474,330} {7,845,932) {7,287,256)
Restricted fund
Wages & salaries - {2,654,728) {2,654,728) {1,194,116)
Administration costs - - - (2,267)
Exhibition & promotion costs - {86,063} {86,063) -
Preservation of contents {9,574) - {9,574} {10,635)
Restoration of buildings - (401,051} {401,051} {420,795)
Mairtenance of estate (614,478) - {614,478) {313,950)
Education department {718,953) - {718,953} {329,720)
Community events (37.352) - (37,352) (40,571}
Patronage and heritage costs {38,944) - {38,944) {52,911}
Donations made (285,098) - {285,098} {203,036)
The Queen Elizabeth Castle of Mey Trust {65,434) - {65,434} {10,982

{1,769,833) (3,141,842) (4,911,675) (2,779,023)
Endowment fund .
Restoration of buildings - {37,964) (37,964} {37,965)
Total {4,143,435) {8,654,136) {12,795,571) (10,104,244}

Support costs are apportioned to the categories of charitable activities on a pro-rata basis where it is not possible to allocate the
costs. Please see note 7 for support costs summary.
For prior year funds breakdown please refer to note 11.
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Notes (continued)

7 Support and other tosts

General Restricted Endowment Total Total
Fund Fund Funds 2022 2021
Support costs £ £ £ £ £
Staff costs {3,336,958} (2,654,728} - {5,991,686) (4,808,396)
Marketing, communication and exhibition costs
{305,876} {86,063) - {391,939) {238,659)
Depreciation and amortisation (1,758,125} (401,051) (37,964} {2,197,144) {2,124,392)
Administration costs {73,367) - - (73,367) {45,029)
{5,474,330) {3,141,842) {37,964) {8,654,136) (7,216,476}
Goverhance costs Note
Legal {319,385) [75,987) - (395,372} (87,972)
Auditor's remuneration {99,626) ‘- - (99,626) {38,100
Bank interest and charges {78,547) - - (78,547} [110,390)
Irrecoverable VAT expense {165,161) - - [165,161) _ {176,593)
Consulting & professional fees {156,638) {22,235) - {178,873) {239,359)
Other - Acquisition of subsidiary n (86,611} - - {86,611) -
{905,968} {58,222) - {1,004,190) {652,414)

for prior year funds breakdown please refer to note 11.

& Donations made 2022 poiral
[ 3 £
Architecture & Heritage projects donations 131,230 291,988
Donations to Education institutions including bursaries and student support 152,900 317,512
Community events and initiatives donations 968 10,010
285,088 619,510
9 Net incoming/{outgoing) resources are stated after charging 2022 2021
£ £
Auditor's remuneration:
Audit of Foundation financial statements 80,425 21,500
Non-audit services provided to the Foundation 8,000 1,400
Audit of subsidiary financial statements 45,150 37,600
Non-audit services provided to subsidiaries 8,545 6,045
142,120 56,545
Depreciation and amortisation 2,291,057 2,157,448
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10 Staff Costs
Dumitries Dumiries The Queen Castie Oumfries
House AG House Elizabeth ond Gardens Favming ond
The Prince’s  Trust Trading Carrch Home Farm Casthe Of May of Mey Land
Foundation Limited Limbed Limited Trust Umited Umited
E £ E £ £ £ £
Wages and salaries 5,260,992 1126600 796,377 an 203 167,878 173,546 265,138
‘Social security costs 355,272 74,752 35,488 0,325 12,992 9,674 26,082
nher pension cosis 156,945 30,747 46,784 3,199 17,607 7730 7,739
55773i209 1‘233‘099 891,649 10#?27 ZIBﬁT? 1s?io1u 301,93%
Communiky
Caphtad
Umited 012 Foiva
€ £ £
Wages and salares @387 7,948,531 6,226,847
Social security costs 4,872 550,857 S0L,756
Oiher pension covts 148 272,959 225,901
55,837 8,771.947 6,955,544

———r st o —

On 1 july 2021, The Prince’s Foundaiion acquired &G Carrick Limited. The cost shown above represents the 9 months expenditure fram the date of acquisition.

Staff cosiz s a result of the charitable activitkes todal £5,991,686 (2021: 4,308,396). This ameunt comerises the wages, salarfes and related s1aff costs of The Prince’s Foundation
arvd The Queen Elizabeth Castle of Mey Trust,

The wages and salaries of the trading entilles are Inctuded within the cost of raksing funds under the corresponding trade activities. The Prince’s Faundation far Bidlding

Community, The Prince's Schoo! of Traditianal Arts, The Prince's Reg ion Trust have : cosis.
Quring the year radund and ination pay of £137 582 wore made {2011 £28,173). All paymenis were settied Tn year.
Humber of emplayees whose tatal employ fits (exchuding employ ion costs} > E60,000
w2 w1
From -
£60,001 tor £70,000 6 7
E73,001 to E£0,000 - 1
EED,CO1 1o ES0,000 3 3
£90,001 to €110.000 - -
£110,001 te £120,000 - 1
E120,001 to £130,000 1 1
£130,001 to £140,000 1 -
E340,001 1o £180,000 - -
£180,001 to £190,000 1 i
£190,001 to £200,000 - -
All of the emplayees above received pengion contributions.
022 201
£ E
Employer pension fons for the above 2.3 44,700
The average mumber of employess of the group during the period was as fellows:
w02 021
Humbey HNumber
The Prince’s Foundation 153 132
AG Carrick Limiced b ] -
Dumvirles House Trust Trading Limited 58 110
Lumiries House Home Farm Umited 3 3
Dumfrias Farming and Land Limited -1 -3
The Queen Elizabeth Castle of Mey Trust 15 10
Castle and Gardens of Mey Limied 17 11
Community Capltal Limited 1 ]
354 279
154 [2021: 113} of the I wers emplyed an a | hasis.
N Yrustees racelved any remuneration in respect of their rale as Trustess in Lhic year or the preceding year.
The key management personnel of the parent charity, the Foundasi rise the Ti and the Senkor Management Team as noted on pages 28 and 29, The total
pl fits [exchoding foyer pension costs) of the key B | of the F ion were £1,176.046 (2021; restated £1,085,525).
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11 2021 Comparatives for the Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities

Income and endowments from:
Donations and legacies
Donations
Grants and gift in kind
Other trading activities
Rental income
Consultancy income
Dumfries House Trust Trading Limited
Dumfries Houte Home Facm Limited
Dumfries Farming & Land Limited
Community Capital Limited
Castle & Gardens of May Limited
Education income
The Queen Elizabeth Castie of Mey Trust
Investment income
Other income

Total

Expenditure on:

Raising funds
Building costs
Portfolio management costs
Dumfries House Trust Trading Limited
Dumfries House Home Farm Limited
Dumfries Farming & Land Limited
Community Capital Limited
Castte & Gardens of Mey Limited
Fundraising costs

Charitable activitles
wages & salaries
Administration costs
Exhibition & promuotion costs
Preservation of tontents
Restoration of buildings
Maintenance of the estate
Education
Cormmunity events
Patranage & heritage costs
Donations made
‘The Queen Elizabeth Castle of Mey Trust

Other resources expended
Gains/(losses) on fixed asset disposal

Gowvernance costs
Total expeases

Net gains/{losses) on investments
Change in market value of investments

Net Incomef{expenditure)

for the year bef: and

The Prince’s Foundation
Trustees' report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2022

General Restricted Endowment Total Total
Funds Funds Funds 2021 2020
£ E E E £
13,817,627 3,824,066 - 17,641,693 14,473,662
12,500 238,567 - 251,067 681,385
58,704 58,704 66,004
464,484 - - 464,484 814,728
302,359 - - 302,359 3,036,945
393,213 393,213 249,302
413,845 - 413,845 1,112,418
57,981 - 57,981 461,764
423,263 - 423,263 584,397
248,613 - . 248,613 466,725
11,296 - 154,384 165,680 219,691
215,339 - 215,539 194,577
15,419,224 4,062,633 154,384 20,636,241 22,361,603
{163,700) - - {163,700} [172,225)
(13.652) - {33,483) 47,135} (76,959}
{1,773,794) . - {1,773,794) (3,035,107}
(400,474) - {400,474} (310,032}
(100,271) - {100,271} (8.672)
{343,804} - . (343,804) {417,310
{217,781 - (217,781} {148,858]
{142,140} - - {142,139} 519,082}
{4,155,616) - {33,483} {3,189.099) [4.688,245)
{4,614,280) {1,194,116) {4,808,396) (5,839,963)
(42,762) 2.267) - (45,029) (54,554)
(238,659) - {238.659) [450,587)
(453,456) {10,635) - {464,121) (915,700}
(1,197,323) {420,795) (37,965} {1,656,083) {1,648,152)
{599,743} {313,930} - (913,733} (1,138,472}
{332,035} {329,720) - (661,755} (1,021,302}
- (40,571) - (40,571) {108,678}
(24,816) (52,911) (77,737) [174,380)
{116,474) (403,036) {619,510) (673,462)
(567,668) {10,982] - {576,650) (730,031}
{7,287,256) {2,779,023) {37,965) (10,104,242} (12,405,281)
{962,158} - - {962,158} (126,117)
(962,153} . {962,158} (125,117}
(552,414} - - {651,414} {1,033,455)
{12,057,444) {2,779,023) {71,448) {14,907,915) (18,253,058}
175,109 - 22,253 197,362 143,743
78,074 - 881,459 959,533 {652,174}
4,614,963 1,283,610 986,648 6,985,221 3,600,072
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11 2021 Comparatives for the Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities (continued)

Net income/(expenditure)
for the year before transfers

Gross transfers between funds

Transfer - investment disbursement
Total transfers between funds

Net movements in funds

Reconcillation of funds:
Fund balances at 1 April 2020

Net movements in funds

Fund balances at 31 March 2021

The Prince's Foundation
Trustees' report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2022

General Restricted Endowment Total Totat
Funds Funds Funds 2021 2020
£ 3 £ £ £
4,614,963 1,283,610 986,648 5,885,221 3,600,074
2,043,599 {2,040,815) (2,784) - -
156,000 - {156,000} - -
2,199,599 (2,080,815) {158,784) - -
6,814,562 {757,205) 827,864 6,885,221 3,600,074
35,040,471 14,596,272 69,886,317 119,523,060 115,922,986
6,814,562 {757,205) 827,864 6,885,221 3,600,074
41,855,033 13,839,067 70,714,181 126,408,281 11%,523,060
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Notes [continued]

12 2022 Statement of finandial activities - Foundatlon only

Foundati of fi ia) activities
(incorporating an Intome and expenditure account)

for the year ended 31 March 2022

Income and endowmenis from:
Donations and legacies
Donations
Grants and gift in kind
Other trading activities
Gift aid from subsidiaries
Investrment income
Education income
Other income

Total

Expenditure on:
Raising funds
Building costs
Portfolip managemenk
Fundraising costs

Charnitable acdvitles
Wages & salaries
Adrainistration costs
Exhibition & promation costs
Preservation of contents
Restoration of buildings
Maintenance of the estate
Education
Community events
Patronage and heritage costs
Donations made

Other resources expended
Gains/{losses) on fixed asset disposal

Governance costs
Total expenses
Net gains/(losses} on investments

Change in value of i

The Prince’s Foundation
Trustees' repost and financial staterments
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Net incame/{expenditure) for
the year bef ion and fi

Taxation

Netincomeflexpenditure)
for the year before transfers

Gross transfers between funds
Transfer - investment disbursement
Tatal transfers between funds

Net movements in funds

Reconciliation of funds:
Fund balances at 1 April 2021

Fund balances at 31 March 2022
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General Restricted Erdowrnent Takal Total
Funds Funds Funds 2022 021
£ E E £ £
5,042,222 7,926,190 - 13,868,513 17,576,909
- 497,500 - 497,500 238,567
1,333,341 - - 1,333,341 523,188
300,000 - - 300,000 58,580
. - 157,618 157,613 71,245
514,271 - - 514,271 423,263
1,055,639 - - 1,055,639 4,521,787
9,145,574 8,423,690 157.618 17,726,882 23,413,539
(254,735) - - (254,735) {163,700}
. - (32,202) (32,202) [15,012)
(189,315} {51,193) N {240,508} [142,139)
{444,050} {51,193) (32,202) (527,445} [324,851)
{3.132,818) {2,640,391) - (5.773.209) [4,607,977)
{7.956) - - {7,956) {7.632)
[305,876) (86.063) - [391,938) {23B,659)
(519,752) {9.574) - [529,326) {464,121)
(1.215,755) (401,051) {32,554) {1,654,770) {1,656,081)
© [1,006,670) (614,478} - {1.711,148} {913,733)
(669,580) {718,953) - 1,388,533} [661,755)
B (37,351 - (37,352) [40,571)
{60,441} {38,944} - (99,435} (77,737)
- {370,150} - (370,150} (1,154,511)
(7.008,898) {4,916,956] {37,964) {11,963,818) (9.822.77r7)
53812 - B 5,812 {962,153)
[781,085} (98,222] - (879,317) {596,412)
(8,228,231} {5,066,371} (70,166) {13,364,768) {11,706,153)
. - 57,331 57331 11,736
- - 417,169 417,169 322,445
917,343 3,357,319 561,952 4,836,614 12,041,527
917,343 3,352,319 561,952 4,836,614 12,041,527
3,570,107 {3.562,964) (7,153) - -
156,000 - [156,000) - -
3,726,117 (3,562,964) [163,153) - -
4,643,460 {205,645} 394,799 4,836,614 12,041,527
30,322,53% 13,560,505 70,714,181 114,597,225 102,555,698
34,965,999 13,354,860 71.1125980 119,433,839 114,597,225
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12 2011 Comparahive Statement of financial acuivities - Foundation only

Founddation statement of financial activities
{incorporating an i and di ]

{or the year ended 31 March 2021

The Prince's Foundation
Truskees' report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2022

General R :] End Total Total
Funds Funds Funds 2021 2020
£ £ £ £ £
intome and endowments from:
Donations and legocies
Donations 13,772.843 3,804,066 - 17,576,909 13,834,154
Grants and gift in kind - 238567 - 238,567 678,885
Other trading activities 523,188 - - 523,188 880,733
Gift aid from subsidiaries 54,580 - - 58,580 €65,140
Investment income . - 71,245 71,245 42,799
Edfucation income 423,263 - - 423,263 584,397
Other income 165,981 - 4,251,806 4,521,787 5.067,244
Total ' 15,047,855 4,042,633 4,323,051 23,413,539 21,753,356
Expenditure on:
Roising funds
Building tosts {163,700) - - {163,700) (172,225)
Portfolic management - . (19,012} [19,012) {15,280)
Fundraising costs {142,139) - - {142,139) {519,083)
{305,839) - {19,012) {324,851} {706,588)
Charitakle activitles
Wages & safaries {3,413,851) {1,134,116) . {4,607,977) (5.304,911)
Adminiseration costs {7.632) - - {7.632) {8,904
Exhibition & promation costs 1238,659) - . {238,659) (450,587)
Preservation of contents {453,436) (10,635) - {464,121) {515,700)
Restoration of buildings {1,197,323) {420,795) (37,963) {1,656,081) (1,637,930
Mairtanance of the estate [599,743) (313,990) - {913,733) {1,188,472)
Education (332,035) (329,720) - [661,755] {1,021,302)
Community events - (40,571} - (40.571} {108,678}
Patronage and heritage costs {24,826) {52,911} - (72,7237 {174,380}
Donations made (180,082} [974,429) - (1,154,511} (806,278}
[6,447,647) {3,337,167) (37,563} (9,822,777 {11,217,143)
Cther resources expended
Gainsf{losses) on fixed asset disposal [962,153) . - {062,153) {126,696]
Govermnante costs {596,412) - - (596,412) {966,732}
Total expenses : (8,312,051} (3,337,167} (56.975) 31,706,193} {13,017,158)
Net gains/(losses) on investments - - 11,736 11,736 (48,187)
Change in market value of investments - - 322,445 322,445 (64,595)
Net incomef{expenditure) for
the year before tanation and transfers 6,735,804 705,466 4,600,257 12,041,527 2,623,415
Taxation - - - - -
Net incomefiexpenditure) 6,735,804 705,466 4,600,257 12,041,527 8,623,415
for the year before transfers
Gross transfers between funds 1,688,727 (1,685,943} (2,784} - -
Transier - investment dishursement 73,500 - {73,500) - -
Total transfers between funds 1,762,227 (1,685,943} [76,284) - -
Net movements In funds 8,495,031 [980,477) 4,523,973 12,041,527 8,623,415
Reconciliation of funds:
Fund balances at  April 2020 21,824,508 14,540,982 66,190,208 102,555,698 93,932,283
Fund balances at 31 March 2021 30,322,539 13,560,505 70,?14=181 114,597,225 102,555,698
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Hotet fcontinwed)]
13 Intangibie dests
Group Sportng
Trademarks wights Total
[ £
Cost of valuailon
At 1 April 201 €,2B0 50,500 56,780
Additions - - -
Disposals - - .
Ar 31 March 2022 5,280 50,500 56,780
Amordsation
At 1 Aprd 2021 4,731 - 4,731
Charg# for the pariod 200 - 200
AL 31 Mareh 2022 4,931 - 4,931
Wet book vatue
At 1 March 2022 1349 sogw 51849
At 31 March 2021 1549 50,500 52,048
Foundatipn Sparting
ights Total
E
Costor valuation
At 1 April 3021 50,500 50,500
Additions - .
Dispozak - -
At 31 Manch 2022 51,500 30500
Wet boak value
At 31 March 2002 Sﬂg SO&OD
At 31 March 2021 540, 500 50,500
Cost or vakuztion at 31 March 2022 ks represented by:
Trademarka Sporting
£ Rights
£
Cost 6,280 65,000
Valuation in 2017 - {14,500,
£,280 50,500
Ifintangibte msets had not been revalued they would have been 21 the K ] I cost:
202 Firral
E £
Cost of sporting rghis ss=noo 65,000
14 Haritage Accots
Group Hedtage
assets
£
Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2021 61,751,527
Additions -
Disposats -
Ar 31 March 2022 1,751,527
K1 book valux
At 31 March 2022 61,751,527
At31March 2021 — LI,
Cost or vatuation ar 31 Warch 2022 k& represented by:
Herags
et
[3
Cost 39,263,476
Yaluation in 2017 21968051
615751!52?

IFhavitage assets had not been revatued they would have been included at the following historical cost:

ni i
£ 3
Cost of heritage assets 35,783,476 39,783,476

Page 53



The Prince's Foundation
Trustees' report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Noes {eentinued)
14 Hevhage Assets (continued)

Foundatian Herlitage

assets

E

Cost or vatuation
Ar ) Aprd 2021 €0.751,527
Additions -
Disposals -
At 31 March 2022 60,751,527
Het boak value
At 31 March 2021 64,751,527
At 31 March 2022 60,751,527

T ——

Cost or valuation at 31 March 2022 is represented by:

Heritage
assely
E
Cost 38,783,476
Vakuation in 2017 21,968,051
60|7S!i527
If endowment assets had not been revalued they would have been included at the following historical cost:
2012 021
E E
Cost of heritage assets 148,783,476 38,783,476
37T 87047
Heritage assets within the End Funds prise Dumfries House, the stablkes and coach house and the coments of Dumfries House, many of which date back to the

commissioning of the House in the 17505, Dumiries House itsell was built between 1754 and 1759 for the Sth Earl of Dumfries by the Adarn brothers. The most important
additional works to the buitding were undertaken by the architeet Robert Wieir Schultz in the 1890s.

Dumfries House has an unrivalted collection of furmi made of bought for the house when first built, Around 55 pieces by Thomas Chi dale, which repi his early
rocaco o "Direcyr” phase, intlude bookeases, a bed, and items such as shaving tables and wask fs. With most of the origmal lmo-ces Surviving, these pheces testify to
Chippendale's early suctess in Scotland. This prehensive body of furnl Is ¥ d bry work from the ¢ gh-based wrights &l der Peter, Francis
Brodie, and william Mathie. The range of luxury furniture praduced by this group is unﬁque in the world, both i terms of uts quantit\r and quality. The contents are complemented
by arpats, chandelicrs and other smaller ohjects, many of which can niBl be found In their original lecations.

The Foundation atsa cwns the Avenue Rridge, the Dovecote, the Temple and the tee House which are classified as heritage assets, but cannot be vatued ond are therefore not
ded in the fi ial

The hevitage assets within the Foundauon comprise targely of 18th century, 19th century and 20th century fine furniture, items of ve and applied art and works of art.
Assats acquired during the period are purchased to enhance the current collections within the Howuse.

Records of the collection are kept in the form of a digital database andd hard coples, both of which are regulasty updated. Access 1o the asséts within the House is only permitted on
the guided tours throughout the year. Any items not on the public route of these tours can be accessed by pricr appeintment with the collection manager.

A full revatuation of the heritage assets held within the Foundation was conducted during the year ta 31 March 2017,

The heritage assets also relate to The Castle of Mey which was gifted by the late Her Majesty Queen Elizabeth The Gueen Mother to the Queen Elizabeth Castte of Mey Trust on its
inception in 1996, There is na intention to either acquire or dispose of haritage assets. The Castle was revalued by the Trustess on 31 December 2010 at £1,000,000 in aceordsnce
with Actounting and Reporting by Charities: Staternent of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their acoounts in accordance with the Financial Reparting
Standard 102 [affactive 1 lanuary 2019). The Trustees consider this to be a reasonable value at 31 March 2022

< v anabysls of Hevltage Asset N
2002 2021 m0 2018 2018
£ £ E £ [3
Purchases and additions - . - 1,000,900 -
Revaluation - - - - -
. - - 1,000,000 :
Disposals - - - - .
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Kaben |oanbimuedt

15 TanglBl Nled assons

Group Liatatald npatraents Imprrernents B Aaah total
[ELTEY Land & " Laanahsi Plant & Fures & atar wWakshe undne maz
Buldings AuRding Peoperty Fraperty Machincry Fagings wehides Cottt tanytruetien
E E 3 E E 3 E £ i E
Cast or vilwoikon
Ar ] Al 021 43510,556 . 1,511,331 . 245,658 1338 M3 198,777 3564 L0455 7301902
Aodtlors - B0 6110 1027 JELE LS it 106, 402 - 2,847,235 4522, ME
Pagazaly 15775 . . . QO30 20,504 |E™.B55] . 13.202) [EELRS)
Trarden 1Er2M1 . 09.437 07551 . Rk - - (2.X,306) -
Aequinisian af wibcdiany - 332,364 . - 133,458 - - - S01.867
A2 3] Mach 1922 33.511.593 F90.000 1395 141 210.67% £50.765 50001 ETS 131330 3.564 LSIMIEE SL08.174
Deareciaian
B 4 Al 2020 L6779 - 457,003 - nym 1,h35, 151 134,408 4,560 - 14530056
Lharge for period 117007 11,500 :LUEL) 1M 4850 30T nrs - - L.290,857
Crpaalc .78 . . . 13,0571 {2t Mgt |EQ.agT . . [85,13%]
Transfers - - . . . - - - . .
Aequlsieion nf 1ubaidiary - . 2337 . - 13k 260 - . . JA0187
n 3L March 7022 1L376.570 11,509 2,253,268 2,880 795961 IAImALY 85,950 3,564 . 17,130,567
e beok vofid
AL31 March M122 18, BE0 S5 ATE 00 1235073 216,700 JeLeos 1,507 Aa3 JAE G - 2,578,363 AL 620
Ar 31 Mach #4121 3869778 - 554330 134 459 1.357 851 3,068 - Lodgase Erdachrl]

Crt1 e welkaTion 4t 31 March 2007 14 ropeoscatad by:

unds nautahold Imprévamants Imgravaments t Plam & Flures & Molor
Bulldings Land & o Laguehald Machinary Hliilre wehides webaie Amsots uncier Tonal
Bulding Propany Praperty Ceniti fambutlon wne
E 3 £ £ € L £ E E £
Cast 58,335,700 5,000 1A95. 11 367 Ll ) FOILETE 31w 1564 2314316 0,253,263
awgtienin 2007 [.508.179) - . . - B - . {235.957) [R042201)
Ssarsrd LEXe i) o435 dal 115819 AB0TEE SLETE 23310 XY IETANEA S irena)
I nangible foed A34e11 Fad o) Eer rvBintd Pty veild B
W man
3 £
tast af freehold lend & butldings k| 01 ST159.680
Asgees upder conscructon Ae14316 1.1taab?
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15 Tanglhle fard mtets foantineed]

Feundation

Lot ar velnalion
At 1 Agrll 2027
addklens
Cizposah
Teansfmrs

AL 31 tdarch 2021
Pepreciation
arl fgell 3021
Lharge For periad
Disposals
Translers

At 31 Manch 2022

Wel book valug
AR 31 farch 2002

AY 31 haarch 2421

The Primee™s Foundatha

Trusteas” repart 3nd Timareial skatements

Far the year =nded 31 March 2022

Coet orvaluatian at 33 March 2022 B represented by:

tast
WalusiianIn 2017

W tangible fized a1zets had not been revalued they would have been scluded ak the Rllewing histarkcsl cost:

Cast of rechald lard & bulldings

Besets under cometructlcan

Leasehald tmprovements Impravements 1o
Land & Land & (-] Leasehold Plant & Fixture & Muolgr Welnli= Azsets under Total
Bulldings Nadings Propenty Proparty Machinary Flttings wahlctes ovs Constructlon Firr]
3 £ I 1 E E L i [ 3
40,232.924 - - . 218,07 1553,113 DTS 2564 15,148 43875799
1,402,582 40,000 153,555 12,137 FF.FAFY 265,383 A0 +42 2,403,713 5,276,032
15,375 . . - 18,763} - [42,599] - (158,898 [226, 3401
185,209 - 400437 207,£51 - + (893,198 -
41,914,540 690,00% £33.39% 219673 312535 39,086 204318 3,564 2,578,363 49,473 430
9,236,675 . - - 136,142 7327501 103,708 3564 - 12407730
1,632,339 1,502 1 287 49,487 131,316 15,837 - - 1851608
112511 . - - (LOBEY . (a7, B9} - - 146, 235}
11,267,751 11540 B 2376 183941 954,757 TE5LE FR1d - 24,013,101
30447188 679,500 45,524 2EH0Y 135,586 380,319 LTETE - 1,578,363 35,210,189
0,396,249 - il,s_il 26,008 37,067 - TI6.M49 31,068 068
Imprecements Improuessents to
land & Lnd & L] Legiehald Famt & Flxtures & Metor Website Astet under Taeal
Pullgingy Rulldmgs Property Property Machinery Fettings ehbeley L Construction 02
£ [ t £ [ 3 t £ ] £
51,753,625 BIDOED 53,502 39,629 319,£33 2,839, 204, 31E 3,564 2,814,315 59,498,127
4,238 E85) - - - - - - |23%5,941) {10.074,£22
41,914.94 BS0,O00 £53,95] 8,679 319,513 2,835,056 204,318 3564 1578363 49,433 4
Wz 2001
E

Tage Bl

£
51753628

1B14, 335

50,071,608

962,111



The Prince’s Foundation
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For the year ended 31 March 3032
Notes {continued)
16 Inwestments
Group \
2022 021
£ £
Investments 7651870 ’ 7,174,904
7,651,870 7,174,404
Pargnt charity
2012 20
£ £
I t in subsidiary undertakings 991,607 5
Investments 6,700,354 €,254,009
7,691,961 6,264,014
The Prince's F Jation is the sole bber ordinary shareholder of the following subsidiaries:
Dumiries House Trust Trading Limited {Company number $C333119}, a company incorporated in Great Britain and registered in Scotland is a trading subsidiary
which represents the commercial trading arm of the Foundation. The regi: d add of the company is Dumfries House, Dumfries House Estate, Cumnock,
Ayrshire, KALS 2NE.

Dumifries House Home farm Umited (Company number SC261878), a company incorporated in Great Britain and registered in Scotland is a trading subsidiary
which represents the farming arm of the Found. The registerad add of the company is Dumfries House, Dumfries House Estate, Cumnock, Ayrshire, Kal8

Dumfries Farming & Land limited (Company number 06391121), a company incorporated in Great Britain and registered in England and Wales is a trading
subsidiary whose principal activiry is in relation to commerdial building construction. The registered add: of the pany is 19-32 Charl Road, Shoreditch,
London, EC2A 35G.

Community Capital Limnited (Company number 04368547), 3 company incorporated in Great Britain and registered in England and Wales is a trading subsidiary
whose business is urban desiga o ltancy. The regi J address of the company is 19-22 Charlotve Road, Shoreditch, London, EC2A 35G. This company
became a subsidiary on 1 April 2018,

The Queen Elizabeth Casthe of Mey Trust {Charity number $0024983), & charity registered in Scotland, set-up for the preservation of buitdings and manuments
with historical importance and architectural interest. b is registered at Castle of Mey, Caithness, KWwi4 8XH, The Prince*s Foundation became the sole trustee of

this charity on 1 January 201%9.

Af Carrick Limited [Company nember 02258628), a company incorporated in Great Bricain and registered in England and Wales is a trading subsidiary whase
principal activity is retail and tour operations at the Highgrove estate. The regi 1 add of the company is Clarence House, London, SW1LA 18A. Acquired 1
July 2021,

The Prince's Foundation is the controlling party of the following charities as of 33 March 2022:

The Prince's Foundation for Building C ity [Company ber 3579567, Charity number 1069969), an educational charity regi d in England and Wales
is tegistered at 19-22 Charlotte Road, Shoreditch, London, EC2A 35G. This charity became a subsidiary of the F dation on 1 April 2018.

The Prince's School of Traditional Arts (Company number 04970959, Charity number 1101527), an ed ional charity regi d in Englznd and Wales is
registered at 19-22 Charlotte Road, Shareditch, London, EC2A 35G. This charity became a subsidiary of the Foundation on 1 September 2018,

The Prince's Foundation indinectly owns the following subsidiaries as of 31 March 2022:

Castle and Gardens of Mey Limited (Company number 5C247163), a company incorpavated in Great Britain and registered in Scotland iz indirectly owned by the
Foundation, viz its sole Trusteeship of The Queen Etizabeth Castle of Mey Trust which fully owns this trading subsidiary . The regi d add of the company is
Castie of Mey, Caithness, Kw14 8XH

Tha Prince’s Reg ation Trust [C ber (4342518, Charity number 1089932}, an educational charity registered in England and Wales is indirectly

pany

controlled by the Foundation, wa its contrgd of The Prince's Foundation for Building G ity, which is the sole member of this charity. The registered address
of this entity is 19:22 Charlotte Road, Shoreditch, London, EC21 35G.

The summarised financial results of all of these subsidiaries for the period ended 31 March 2022 are disclosed in note 30 to these accounts.
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16 Investments [continued)

Investments - Group

Market value at 31 March 2021
Additions at cost

Disposals at carrying value
Revaluations

Investment cash movement

Market value at 31 March 2022

Analysis of market value of investments:
UK equities
International equities
UK bonds
International bonds
Portfolio funds
Alternatives
Cash

Analysis of investment income for the period:
UK equities
International equities
UK bonds
International bonds
Multi-Asset Funds
Alternatives
Cash

There were three investment held at 31 March 2022 with a value of greater than 5% of the portfolio valuation, {2021: 2).

investment

Charity Equity Income Fund UCITS Fund
Schroder 5terling Corporate Bond fund
Charities Property Fund

£
688,350
395,532
459,198
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2022 2021
£ £
7,174,404 6,703,416
2,021,194 1,638,729
(1,983,534) (2,191,360)
524,292 1,156,895
(84,486) {133,276)
7,651,870 7,174,404
2,443,516 2,612,136
1,459,539 1,729,492
1,303,138 1,213,368
571,709 151,549
343,225 128,452
1,375,516 1,082,145
155,227 257,262
7,651,870 7,174,404
62,666 53,027
25,060 31,692
33,911 37,732
5,311 919
280 745
38,985 39,142
61 2,423
166,274 165,680
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Notes fcontinued)

16 Investrments (continued)

- Pavent charlty
2022 2021
£ £

Market value at 31 March 2021 6,264,009 1,696,980
Additions at cost 1,340,941 694,473
Disposals aL carrying value 1,428,003} {742,166)
Rewvaluations 474,502 334,181
I cash t {51,095} 23,776
Transfer on acquisition of subsidiary - 2,256,765
Market value at 31 March 2022 6,700,354 6,264,008
Analysis of market value of investmenis:

UK equities 2,327,054 2,066,171

International equities 1,259,980 1,413,781

UK bonds 926,750 1,213,368

tntemational bonds 526,006 151,54%

Multi-Asset Funds 144,891 128,452

Alternatives 1,360,446 1,082,144

Cash 155,227 208,544

5,700,354 5,264,009
AT

Analysis of invest it i for the peciod:
UK equities 57,628 20,861
International equities 23,051 15,648
UK bonds 32,608 14,324
tnternational bonds 5,250 -
Multi-Aszet Funds 280 -
Alternatives 38,801 19,605
Cash - 807
157,618 71,245
Thare were thre= held at 31 March 2022 with 2 value of 5% of the portfolio valuation {2021 3).
tnvestment £
Charity Equity Income Fund UCITS Fund 688,350
Schroder Sterling Corporate Bond Fund 395,532
Charities Property Fund 459,198
17 Stock ,
Group Foundation Group Foundation
2022 022 02 2021
3 £ £ £
Farming livestock & consumables 535,336 - 545,857 -
Goods for resale - Cumfries House Visitor Centre 31,062 - 28,155 -
Goods for resale - Ballater Highgrove shop - - 4,820 -
Goods for resale - Castle and Gardens of Mey 52,659 - 54,387 -
Goods for resale - AGC 364,127 - - -
Food & heverage stock - Dumnfries House 25,810 - 17,060 -
Food & beverage stock - Ballater Bistro 3,138 - 2,435 -
Food & beverage stock - AGC 7,857 - - -
Dumfries Farming and Land Ltd:
Development land at Knockroon 610,000 - 610,000 -
WIP - - 7.844 -
1,629,989 - 1,270,558 -
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Notes (continued}
18 Debtors
Graup Foundation Group Foundation
022 2022 021 W0
Amounts falling due within one year E £ £ £
Trade debtors 579,989 105,732 455,307 155,797
Other debtors 27.926 11,085 18,413 3,051
Other taxation recoverable 189,029 169,563 49,483 -
Amounts dye from subsidiary - 3,094,810 - 3,973,313
Prepayments and acerued income 374,464 263,683 215,145 179,733
. 1,171,408 3,644,873 738,348 4,311,894
Arnounts falling due after more than one yeoar '
Other debtors - - - -
Aggregate amounts 1171408 3,644,873 738,348 ‘4,311,894
19 Creditors
Group Foundation Group Foundation
012 2022 2021 2021
£ £ £ [3
Amounts folling due within cne yeor
Bank gverdrafis - - - -
Trade creditors 719,419 434,076 273,653 165,707
Other creditors 481,642 361,227 125,861 39,442
Hire purchase 120,179 99,519 113,124 100,839
Other taxation payable 439,655 125,794 382,509 298,468
Corporation tax . - a5 -
Accruats and deferred income 2,408,329 1,500,759 1,273,519 1,087,928
4,173,224 2,521,375 2,168,761 1,692,384
Amounts falling due ofter more thon one yeor
Hire purchase due in 2-5 years 33,246 - 16,303 2,678
33,246 - 16,303 2,678
—— ]

The Prince's Foundation recognises income on entitlement. Where entitiement has not been established at the year end date the income is deferved or held as
a deposit within creditors.

(ncluded within creditors is deferred income and deposits as follows:

Group Balance Batance
1 April Prior year Additions Released 31 March
2021 balance refeased Inyear inyear w022
Deferred income 734,363 (618,059} 2,036,083 (1,159,761) 592,606
Deposits and gift vouchers 83,682 {62,495} 1,710,962 [1,146,561) 591,568
824,045 (630,554! 3,747,045 2,306,342} 1,584,194
Foundation Balance Balance
1 April Prior year Additions Released 31 March
2021 balance reteased inyear inyear 2022
Deferred income 734,363 (618,059} 1,536,083 (Ba7.281) 805,106
Deposits and gift vouchers - - - - -
734,363 !618|059! 1,536,083 (3475281! 805,106
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Notes {continued)
20 Fund movements
Group Balance Transfers Balance
1 April b 1 ! Galns or between 31 March
Note 021 pended losses funds 2022
E £ £ £ E E
Endowment fund 01 70,714,181 157,618 {70,166] 474,502 {163,155) 71,112,580
Restricted funds 0.1 13,839,067 8.428,638 (5,061,090} - . (2,814,185} 13,392,430
General funds w03 41,855,033 13,890,669 {14,663,116}) 54,213 3,977,340 45,109,139
Total funds 116,408,261 42,476,925 (19,799,371 528,715 - 129,614,545
b ——— ] L —— [ ————}
Foundation Bilance Transfers Balance
1 April Incomdng Aesources Gains or berween 31 March
Hote Forid pended losses funds 022
E £ £ £ E £
Endowment fund 20.1 70,714,181 157,618 {70,166} 474,500 (163,153) 71,113,980
Restricted funds 0. 13,560,505 423,690 15,066,371} - {3.562,964) 13,354,860
General funds 0.3 30,322,539 9,145,574 18.224.231) - 3,726,117 34,965,999
Total funds 114,597,225 17,726,882 [13,364,768) 474,500 - 115,433,839
20.1 Endowment fund
Group Batance Transters Balance
1 April Ing Galns or batwesn 31 March
2021 ded tosses funds 2022
E £ £ | 3 £ £
The Prince’s Foundation - Endowment
assets 64,458,783 - {37,564} - - 64,420,819
The Traditional and islamic Arts Education
Fund 1,980,655 41,695 [15.124) 170,239 (49,892) 2127573
Abdul Latif tameel Centre for Traditional
Arts and Crafts 4,274,743 115923 [17.078) 304,263 {113.263) 4,564,588
70,710,181 157,618 (70,156} 474,502 [163=£iI 71,112,980
— - — ] ———]
Foundatlon Bolanes Transfers Balance
1 April Ing Galns or between 31 March
N spended losses funds 022
£ E £ E £ £
The Prince’s Foundation - Endowment
assets 64,458,783 - [37.964) - - 64,420,819
The Traditionad and ktamic Arts Education
Fund 1,980,655 41,685 (15.524) 170,239 {29,892} 2,122,573
Abdul Latif Jameel Ceatre for Traditiona
Arts and Crafis 4,174,742 115923 (17.028) 304,263 [113,263) 4,564,588
70,714,181 157,618 {70,166 474,502 !163.155! 71,111,980
— ] I——_ =il
The Prince's Foundation - Endowment assets - induded in end funds are heritage assets of £60,751,527, freehotd land & buildings of £3,618,794 and sporung

rights of £50,500.

Included in endowment funds is the Abdul Latif lameal Centre for Traditicnal Arts and Crafts endowment fund and The Traditional and Iskamic Arts Education Fund.
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Notes [continued)
20 Fund mowemeants {continued]
20.2  Restricted furds
Group Balance Transters Balance
3 Agril Incoming Resources Galns or between 31 March
2021 tpended losses. funds firrd
£ £ £ £ £ E
Group restricted - Various Funds 8,783,653 3,054,411 (4,290,248) - (805,521} 6,788,265
Highgrove Profect - 4,989,635 {533,372) (1,786,654} 2,669,669
Glenside Build 1,075,565 - 193,631) - (422,247 1,559,687
Prince’s School of Traditional Arts - Property
fund ’ 2,171,333 - {30.667) . - 2,140,666
Glenside printmaking studio 603,637 - 33,593) - (335,931) 34,113
Coachford cottage devel 167,505 - [32,976) - {134,529) -
Dumfries House Playground Project 31,373 344,532 (46,602} §329,303) -
13,&39&7 8,428,638 (5,051,_09-2‘): - IaialdilsSI 135392.430
Foundatisn Batance Transfers dalante
1 apdl ing Aetoul Gainsor between 31 March
2021 ded fosses funds 2022
£ £ £ £ £ £
The Prince’s Foundation - Various Funds 8,511,091 3,089,463 (4,295,529) - (554,300} 6,750,725
Highgrove Project - 4,989,695 {533,372 {1,786,654) 2,669,669
Glenside Build 2,075,565 - 93,631) - (422,207) 1,559,687
Prince's Schaal of Traditkonal Arts - Propenty
fund 2,171,333 - (30,667} - - 2,140,666
Glenside printmaking studio 603,637 - {33,593) - [335,931) 234,113
Coachford cottage develog 167,505 32.976) - (134,529) -
Dumfries House Playground Project 31,373 344,532 46, 602 - (329,303) -
13.5&)!505 8,&23‘690 (5.“64& - !3.552.954! 13,354,860

Varigus Funds - ists of

o thelr Individual values.

Highgrove Praject - cansists of funds held for the devel of naw ed|

Glenside Build - consists of Fends held for the development of the Glenside Centre bor Traditional Arts.

Princa’s School of T

I Arts - Property Fund - rep

of the pri

Glenside printmaking studio - consists of funds hedd for the devel

g studho within the Gl

faciiities at the Highgrove estate,

d funds from donations made to the Group for purposes specified by the donor. These funds are disclosed as a total due

the net hook value of the charity’s one thisd share of 19-22 Charlotte Road, London ECIA 356.
wle Centre for Traditional Arts.

Coachford cottage d p - ists of funds held for the devetopment of the Coachford Cottage artists retreat.
Dumfries House Playground Project - reprasents the developenent and bulld of a new playpark at Dumiries House.
Unirestricted funds
Group Balancy Transfers Balance
1 Agril [l Ing Galns or batween 31 March
021 ded losses funds 2022
£ £ E E £ E
General fundy 33,497,550 13,890,669 (14,668,116} 54,213 4,136,493 36,910,809
Cueen Elizabeth Castte of Mey Tryst - Fived
asset fund 357,483 - - - (159,253) #,198 330
41,855,033 13,890,669 514?58.!16; 54,213 3,977,340 45,109,139
e ey e s
Foundation Balance Transfers Balanea
1 aprli [l Ing Gains or between 31 March
021 pended losses funds 2022
£ £ £ E £ 3
General funds 30,312,539 9,145,574 ss.zza,zstt - 31726117 34,955,953
NI L g L — .}

| funds - & 1] d funiis are those that can be used in accordance with the groug's charitable ebjectives at the disceetion of the Trustees,
The Queen Elizabeth Castle of Mey Trust - Fined asset fund - the fixed asset fund comprises all fixed assets held by tha Trust.
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Motas [cantinued)
0 Fund movements jcontinued)
Prior year comparatives
204 Group - prior year Balance Transfers Balance
1 Apnl ing Gains or hetweesn 31 March
Note 2020 pended losses funds 2021
£ £ £ E [3 £
Endowment fund s 69,886,317 154,384 [71,448) 03,712 (158,783) 70,714,181
Restricted funds 206 14,596,272 4062633 _t2,779,023) - 2,040,815} 13,839,067
General funds 0.7 35,040,471 16,919,224 [12,057,444) 253,183 2,199,599 431,865,033
Total funds 119.523.060 20,636,241 !14.90?,9 15; 1,156,895 - 126,408,281
Foundation - prior year Ealanos Transfers Balance
1 April I ng & Gains ar bekween 1 March
Nova 2000 wpended Insses funds 1021
[ E E E E [
Endcewment fund 05 66,150,208 4,323,051 {56,975) 334,183 |76, 284} 70,718,181
Restricted funds pIx 14,540,987 4,042,633 {3.337,167} - {1,685,943) 13,560,505
Genera funds 0.7 21,824,508 15,047,855 18,312,051} - 1,762,217 30,322,539
Total funds 102,555,698 23,&13@39 !1&?0‘55193! 334,181 - 114E59?!225
20.5 Endowment fund
Group - priar year Balance Transfers Balance
1 Apsil Incoming Resourees Galns or between 31 March
2030 Rsources expended {osses funds piiral
£ 3 E £ £ E
The Prince's Foundation - Endowment assets 60,496,748 - {37,965 - - 64,458,743
The Yradidonal and Islami; ans Education
Fund . 1,693,460 41,837 {13,975) 37,640 148,307) 1,980,655
Abdul Latif fameet Centre For Traditional Ants
and Crafts 3,696,109 113,547 119.508) 596,072 {110,477} 4,274,743
69,886,317 154,384 (71,448) 503,712 {158, 784} 70,714,181
Foundation - prior year Balznce Transfers Balance
1 April tncoming Resources Galns or between 31 March
020 pended lozses Funds 21
E E E £ £ E
The Prince's Foundation - Endowment assets 64,495,748 - (37,963} . . 54,458,785
The Traditionad and Islamic Arts Education
Fund ' 1,693,460 41,837 {13,975) 307,640 (48,307) 1,980,655
Abdut Latif Jamee! Centre for Traditional Arts
and Crafts - 4,281,214 (5.037) 26,541 [27.977) 4,274,741
56,190,208 4,323,051 [56,975) 334,181 [?6,234! 70,714,181
The Prince's Foundation - Endowment assets - Included in end funds are herttage assets of £60,751,527, freehold land & buildings of £3,656,758 and sparting rights of
£50,500.
Included in endowment funds is the Abdul Lavif Jameel Centre tor Traditional Arts and Crafts end fund and The Traditional and kslamic Asts Education Fund.
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20 Fund movements {continued)

20.6 Restricted funds

The Prince's Foundation
Trustees' report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Groug - prior year Balance Transf Bal
1 Apyil Incoming Resources Galns or between 31 March
w020 pended losses funds 2021
€ £ £ 3 £ £

Group restricted - Various Funds 8,846,669 3,562,633 {2.416,677) - {1,171,599} 8,821,026
Glenside Build 2,445,109 - (218.436) . (151,108) 1,075,565
Prince's School of Traditional Arts - Property
fund 2,202,000 - (30,667) - - 171,333
Glenside printmaking studic 478,356 - (25,827) - 151,108 603,637
Coachford cottage development 624,138 500,600 @?,41?] - (869,216} 167,505

14,595i2?2 4!052E633 !ZE?TB,DH! - (2,040,815} 13!339506?
Foundation - prior yoar RAalanee Transters Balance

1 April [ ing R es Galns or between 31 March
2020 pended tosses funds 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £

The Prince’s Foundation - Various Funds 8,791,37% 3,542,633 {2,974,421} - 816,727) 8,542,464
Glenside Build 2,445,109 - {218,436) - (151,108} 2,075,565
Prince's Schooal of Yraditional Arts - Property 2,202,000 - {30,667} - . 2,171,333
Glenside printmaking studio 478,356 - {25,827} . 151,108 603,637
Coachford cottage development 624,138 500,000 {87,417} - (864,216) 167,505

14E540!982 4!042!633 !3,33?,16?] - !1,685!943! 13,560,505

Various Funds =~ consists of numerous restricied funds from donations made to the Group for purposes specified by the donor. These funds zre disclosed as a totat due to their

values.

Glenside Build — consists of funds hetd for the develapment of the Glenside Centre for Traditional Arts.
Prince's School of Traditional Arts - Property Fund - represents the net book vatue of the charity's one third share of 19-22 Charlotte Road, London EC2A 35G.

Glenside printmaking studio - consists of funds held for the develop

t of the pri

ing studio within the Glenside Cantre for Traditional Arts.

Coachford cottage development - consists of funds held for the develapment of the Coachford Cotiage artists retreat.

20.7 Unrestricted funds

Group - prioT year Batance T fi Bal
1 April Incotning Resources Gains or hetween 31 March
2020 e ipended losses funds 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £
Geneval funds 26,014,193 16,419,224 {12,057,444) 253,183 2,868,394 33,497,550
Cueen Elizabeth Castle of Mey Trusl - Fixed
asset fund 9,026,278 - - - |668,795) 8,357,483
35,040,471 16,419,224 [12,057,344) 253!133 2,199,599 41,855,033
Foundation - prior year Balance Transfers Balance
1 april I ing ® Galng or between 31 March
W00 pended losses funds 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £
General funds 21,824,508 15,047,455 !353125051! - 1,762,227 30,322,539
| funds - G | unr tcted funds are those that can be used in accordance with the group's eharitable objectives at the discretion of the Trustees.

The Queen Elizabeth Castle of My Trusk - Fixed asset fund - the fixed asset fund comprises alt fixed assets held by Lhe Trust.
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Notes {continued)}

21 Analysis of net assets between funds

Group General Restricted Endowment Total Total
Funds Funds Funds 2022 2021
E £ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets 36,652,459 6,756,233 71,121,174 114,529,868 111,631,916
Current assets 12,654,956 6,636,197 - 19,291,153 16,911,429
Curreat liabilities {4,165,030) - (8,194) (4,173,224) (2,168,761}
Mot current labilities {33,246) - - {33,246) {16,303)
Total net assets 45,109,139 13,392,430 71,112,980 129,614,549 126,408,281
Foundation General Restricted Endowment Total Tatal
Funds Furnds Funds 2022 2021
£ £ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets 25,826,970 6,756,233 1,121,174 103,704,377 98,534,109
Current assets 11,652,210 6,598,627 - 18,250,837 17,758,178
Current liabilities {2,513,181) - {8.194) {2,521,375) (1,692,384)
Non current liabilities - - - - (2,678)
Total net assets 34,965,999 13,354,860 71,112,980 119,433,839 114,597,225
2021 Comparatives
Group - prior year General Restricted Endowment Total Total
Funds Funds Funds 2021 2020
£ E [ £ £
- Tangible fixed assets 33,801,839 7,157,284 70,722,793 111,681 916 112,787,388
Current assets 10,219,646 6,691,783 . 16,911,429 10,721,238
Current liabilities (2,150,149) {10,000} (8,612) (2.168,761) (3,950,551}
Non current liabilitles {16,303} - - [16,303) {35,016)
Total net assets 41,855,033 13,839,067 70,714,181 126,408,281 119,523,060
Foundation - prior year General Restricted Endowment Total Totsl
Funds Funds Funds 2021 2020
£ £ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets 20,654,032 7,157,284 70,722,793 98,534,109 96,146,296
Current assets 11,344,957 6,413,221 - 17,758,178 9,775,751
Current liabilities {1.673,772) (10,000) (8,612) {1,692,383) (3,357,244
Non current liabilities {2,678) - - (2,678) {9,106)
Total net assets 30,322,539 13,560,505 70,714,131 114,597,225 102,555,698
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Notes {continued)
21 Analysis of net assets between funds {continued)

Resarva analysls between funds

Group General Restricted Endowment Total Toral
Funds Funds Funds 2022 2021
£ [4 £ E £
At the beginning of period 41,855,033 13,838,067 70,714,181 126,408,281 119,523,060
Profit{(loss) for the period before revaluation (752,980) 3,367,548 144,783 2,759,351 5,925,688
Gross transfers between funds 3,977,340 {2,814,185) {163,155} B -
Gains/(losses) on fuation of invest t 29,746 - 417,171 446,917 959,533
Gains/(losses) on luation of hentage assets - - - - -
45,109,139 13,392,430 71,112,580 129,614,549 126,408,281
L ——1 ‘ LI
Foundation General Restricted Endowment Total Total
Fundds Funds Funds 2022 021
£ E £ £ £
At the beginning of the period 30,322,529 13,560,505 70,714,181 114,597,225 102,555,698
Prafitfiloss) for the periad before revaluation 917,343 3,357,319 144,783 4,419445 11,719,082
Gross transfers between funds 3,726,117 (3,562,964) {163,153) - -
Gains/(lossas) on revaluation of § t - - 417,169 417,169 322,445
34,965,999 13,354,560 71,112,980 119,433,839 114,557,225
- —1 ——
2021 Comparatives
Group - prior year General Restricted Endowment Toral Total
Funds Funds Funds 2021 2020
£ £ £ £ £
At the beginning of perind 35,040,471 14,596,272 69,886,317 119,523,060 115,922,986
Profitf{loss) for the peried before revatuation 4,536,889 1,283,610 105,189 5,925,688 4,352,248
Gross transfers beoween funds 2,199,599 (2,040,815} {158,783} . -
Gainsf{l } on revaluation of i ] 78,074 - 881,459 959,533 (652,174)

Introduction of Funds on acquisitions - - - - -

11,855,033 13!839506? 70,714,181 1265408,231 115,523,060
Foundation - prior year General Restricted Endowment Total Tokal

Funds Funds Funds 2021 2020

£ E £ £ E

At the beginning of the period 21,824,508 14,540,982 66,190,208 102,555,698 93,932,283
Profitf(loss) for the period before revaluation 6,735,804 705,466 4,277,812 11,715,082 8,688,009
Gross transfers between funds 1,762,227 {1,685,243) (76,284) - -
Gains/fik ) on revaluation of i ~ - 322,445 322,445 [64,595)

30,322,533 13{560'505 70,714,181 114,597,225 102,555,608
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Nutes feontinued)
n Office For Saud: A
Th Frince's F d. pronvicy dited educath latad by che Office for Studancs {OJ5). To comply with the OFS Direcul dditianal disch are set aut balow |n Bng
with OfS Regulatory advice 9: Aecounts direction vef: OF5 2019.41.
rm Gromt and for (netme
Group Foundation Group Foundatlon
Hote 2t H e w01 011
’ £ £ E £
Grants inceme from the Of5 - - . .
Grank incame from other bedies . 3 500,000 437,500 51,057 13B.,567
Fee Incame for taught awards [exdusive of VAT 162,789 162,789 58,926 85,976
Fee Income for research awards {enclusive of VAT 9,792 9,792 8,399 B399
Fee Income from qualifying o decl of AT} 1,497,026 1,497 526 703,848 Tipa8
Dnher . 113,763 113753 T6574 T6,573
Total grany and fee ncome 1,284,170 1,201,670 1,133,814 1;12&313
Fee Income For taught awards, awards and qualifying courses is siated excusive of AT kn [ine with the OFS Accounts directton and follows the sef out in the
dlrection.
FoXit Stafl comes - -
MHumber of ecnph whose full-time ey bask salery ployer pension costs) > £100,000:
F.r- Fors )
€300.000 t0 £119.999 - .
E320.000 o E174,993 - 1
€125.000¢0 £129,999 . 1 .
ELA0,000 te: E134,590 1 -
E135.000 to E179,939 - -
E180,000 to E1B4,999 - 1
Itn Hne with OFS Regularory advice &: A direction the abde above doss not induda empioyess who joined or beft part-way through a yem.
11403  Head of Frovider remuneration
Head of Provider  Head of Prowider Head of
B A Provider &
w0 Wr: L
From 04703781 From 04/04/21 From 01/04f20
beried 35 Head of Provider ) 10 31/03f 2 o 0a/09/ 11 to 3L/03/21
E E E
Rasic saiary a3474 126,667 ¥82. 700
Payments in |beu of pension contributiont - - -
Fayment of dividends - . M
Ferformanca-related pay and other bonuses - - .
Fension contributlons {exduding satary secrifice schemes) - - .
Salary sacrifice {Indusive of K ' 6,606 10,061 117
Empiayes Selary Sacrifice Adjustment 13,3394 (5.944) {7.308)
Foyment on cessation of office - 59,582 -
Payments Into other persion schems - - -
Other texable benefis - . -
Han-tamsble bepefits - 1,200 -
Fotal remuperation E6.740 191 566 138,181
rs— — ———
Head of Provider's basic satary a3 2 pay multiple of the medien earmings of the Group employees on an FTE basls 58 A 7 1.2
Head of Provider's teral remuneration as a pay muhiple o the median of the: Growp emph an an FTE hasis 5.7 15 7.1
Son for senier staff is by the G {Remio) which as part of the Policy and G {PARC), praviously Finznce, | and
At & {HAL). The totas tion package for the head of pravider is kept ble to ch ble antities of 3 imiar scale. The head of provider does not receive performance
rekated benefics. Their pent is by and d by the Trustees.
*1n line with Of5 v atvice 5: & direction, rhis indudes made to the individual after they ba the Head of Provider. For the purposes of the requirement 12bi, the
basic salary equates to an eight month pariod on an FTE basis. Amounts shown under on of office are of aeorued hefiday pay of E21,933.
nm Sawaranca payments

The toixl amount of any payment [Incluthve of pension] for a8 staff an cessation of office in the year vo Mardh 2022 was £137,582 (2021: £29,173). Thisis the aggregate figure for three members ol
staff during the Aingncial year (2021: 1).

The payment on cessaton of office made 10 the Head of the Provider in the year to ikarch 2022 was £59,582 (2021: Endl), thiz smount b indlusive of acorued holidtay pay of £21,923 and pension
coniributdons of E877 {2021: Enil}. An adkditional £1,200 [ing YAT) contribution for independent lagal adhvice was provided by The Prince’s Foundation.

Page 72



Noves feontinued]
23 Analysis of changes In net cash

Group

Cash:

At bank overdrafi
At bank and f hand
Hire Purchase

Total

Foundatlon

Cash:

At bank overdraft
At bank and in hand
Hire Purchase

Total

24 Transactions with Trustees

During the year, the following transactions took place with Trustees of the charitable compary:

dtathe T

Donations.

or paid on behalf of them

Quring 2022, the T

25 Defined rihutl, "

of financ

of the charitable company d

scheme

Charge to

The Group a defined
adminlstered funds.

26 Financialinstruments

Carrylng amount of Anandal assets
Debt instruments measured at amortised cost
Investments measured at fair value through profit or doss

Carrying amount of finandal liabllites

Measured at amartised cost

The Prince’s Foundaticn
Trustees' report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2032
1 Apri Cash flow Other non 31 March
2021 cash 2012
changes
£ £ £ £
14,902 523 1,587,233 - 16,489,756
[129,427) {27,998} - (157.425)
14.7?3!DDS 1,559|235 - 16,332,331
1 Apri Cash flow Other nan 31 March
2021 cash 2022
changes
£ £ £ [ 4
13,446,284 1,154,680 - 14,605,964
{103,517} 3,998 - (99,519]
13,342,767 1!153.6?8 - 14}_9@&
2022 011
£ £
5|588 -

272,959

d £nil {2021 Enil) to The Prince’s Foundation.

ton scheme for all qualifying employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in indepeniently

Group Foundatien Group Foundation

i r ] 2003 011 021

£ £ £ £

982,379 2475310 688,865 4,311,834
7,651 870 EETMEBSA ?g?d.am 6,764,009
41..206,470 2,521,375 gilss,ou 1,695,062
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Notes {rantinved)
27 Relaved party transactions
Set out betow are details of related party transattions in the year:
Qutstanding debtor/ {creditar)
Sales Expenditure held at the balance cheet date
2021522 2020/21 2021422 202021 202122 2020/21
YooK Net-A-Porter 5,000 - - - - -

The entities fisted above are associsted with The Prince’s Foundation a3 set out below:

Yoox Net-A-Parter &s a luxury fashion retasler of which our Trustee, Cavaliere Federico Marchety, was Chairman until fuly 2021 and was CEQ until the end of Hovernber 2020.
There is a tallaboration hetween The Prince’s Foundation and Yoox Met-A-Porter for the Modern Artisan textile education programme. Disclosed above is £5,000 of trading

incame for licences fees towards the delivery of the Modern Artisan 2 prag This progr was undertaken by the new CEO of Yoox Net-A-Porter following Cavaliera
Federico hetti's resignation in ber 2020,
The ¢ lavive donatéon income attributed to related panies of Trustees is £47,913,

2B Transfer butween funds

Funds Funds Funds
£ £ £
Concolidated of financial activities
Transfers within projects 3,814,185 13,812,185] -
Transfers of VAT rec d and deferred in f zocrual on gnd 7155 - (7.165)
Investment disbursement 156,000 - {156,000)
Totad transhers between funds 3i97?,340 [3.&14.185! !163.155]
29 Significant events and contingent fabilitles
Bress reposts
During the R fal year the F i was the subject of a number of press teports inte lumiramng practices at The Prince’s Foundation in relation to certain donati
hmncallv recetvad by the charity. These reports (ncluded ‘cash for h ' g theraby certain donations were purportedly secured in return for access to the
F ‘s President, and support from the Foundation or related entittes for danor inations in relation to the UK hanours systern.
Fouowing thesa press reports the Office of the Soottish Chanity Regulavor {O5CR) opened ani igation inko the F {ation and its g e. At the date of approval of the
this I igation is

As a consequence of these evants and sl i the Chief E: rth of the Foundation and a senior fundraising executive temporarily stood aside From their rotes. In additan
the Chair of the Board of Trustees resigned ardt, subseq 1o their porary fing aside, the Chief Exetutive of the Foundation and senior fundraising both resigned.

Following these events, the Board ebected a new Chair to the Board of Trustees and has appointed a new Acting Chief Executive.

The Trustaes ¢ d an Independent § gation into press reports about the Foundation. As at the date of approval, the Trustees and OSCR had received the findings
arising from that i igation and the had kssioned and reviewed legal sdvice on the findings of the report.

The findings of the reporl and the attendant legal advice highlighted » number of areas of risk to the Foundation. The rsks Identified and considered indude the potential for
legal, latory, emp and reputational risks. The Trustees accept the reputational risk arising fram these events as probable and note the possible risk of both kegal and
regulatory llablfty outcomes The timing and af any & i outfl are rtain at this ime.

Hotwithstanding me risks identified and considered probable and passible, the T and the Trustees' legal advisers are satisfied that the findings of the report do not result
ina jal fi ke to the Foundati which would require adjustment to or spectiic discosure within the F s i fal st ts. Trustees are also aware
thai the Metropolitan Police are conducting an i gation into allegations of offences under the {F ion of Abuses) Act 1925 and this has been considered within

the legal advice outlined abave.

The are mindful of the fonad risk of such deveh and the I conjunction with the senior executive team are taking forward an action plan to

atidress 1the matters raised in the findings of the indepandent report.

OSCR

The Office of the Scattish Charity Regutator (OSCR), in adklition to reviewing the Trustees' and the findings of the independent report in relation to the press allegat

made against the Foundatiaon, also enquired into certain historical property transactions. The Trustees, at the date of approval, are satished that there are no liabilities,

contingent ar otherwise, 10 account for or disclose in relation to thesa matters within the financial st These additional 0SOR enquirles remain open at the date of
pproval of the Ainancial stat
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Notes (continued)
30 Summarised financial results

The summarised financial results of the charity and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2022 are as fallows:

The Prince's
Dumfiries Dumfries Dumfri Foundation for
The Prince's House Trust House Home Farming - Building AG
Foundation Trading Ltd Farm Ltd & Land Ltd Commwunity Carriek Ltd *
£ £ £ £ £ E
Incormne 17,726,882 2,012,€14 360,330 1,474,748 - 2,849,869
Expenditure 113,364, 765) (2,574,732} {481,861) (1,481,388) . 12,201,704)
Net income / {expenditure) 4,362,114 {262,118} {121,531} {6640} - 558,165
Distributions to parent - - - - - -
Taxation . - - - M
Cther recognised gains/{losses) 474,500 - . - -
Net movemnent in funds 4,836,614 {262,118} {121,521} [6.640) - 558,165
Funds brought forward 114,597,225 (1,284,411) 3,136,249 69,484 - {1,078,513)
Funds carried forward at 31 March 2022 119,433,839 EIEHSQH! 31,014,718 62,844 - (520,448}
The Prines's The Queen
The Prince’s School of Elizabeth Cagtie &
Commusniity Regeneration Traditional Castle of Mey Gardens of Mey
Capltal Led Trust Arts Trust I
£ £ £ £ £

Income: B4, 789 2,500 N 591,069 265,433
Expenditure {72,221 {2,560) B {963,314) [359,908)
Net income f (expenditura) (7.432) {60) - (372,245) 194.476)
Qistributions to parent 1300,000) - - - -
Taxation - - - -
Other recognised gainsf{losses) - . 54,214 -
Net movement In funds $307,432) (60) - {318,031) [94,476)
Funds brought forward 357,014 4,368 - 9,661,667 (143,315}
Funds carvied forward at 31 March 2022 59,582 4,308 - 9,343,636 {237,751}

® For the 9 manth period included in the consolidated accounts.
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Notes {continued}

31 Business Acquisition

On 1July 2021, The Prince's Foundation acquired 100% of the ardinary share capital of AG Carrick Ltd. The share capital was gifted to The
Foundation by The Prince of Wales's Charitable Fund. A.G. Carrick Limited's principal activity is retail and tour operations at Highgrove
estate. This gift is reflected within the Foundation’s other income for the period. The Trustees confirm that no fair value adjustments were
required and the fair value of AG Carrick Limited at the date of acquistion is equal to the book cost of the assets and liabilities of the
hiiginace

No goodwill has been recognised on acquisition. The following amounts of assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities were recopnised at the
acquisition date and form part of the Group's governance costs as shown in note 7:

£'000

Fined assets
Tangible fixed assets . 173,081
Current assets
Stock 361,707
Debtors 153,903
Cash at bank and in hand 274,373

789,983
Creditors:
Amounts falling due within one year {1,045,675)
Net current assets/{llabilities) {259,692)
Net assets/(labilities) {86,611)
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 991,602
Profit and loss account {1,078,213)
Equity shareholders’ funds (86,611)

In the 9 rmonths since acquisition AG Carrick Limited has generated £2,849,869 of income, netting a profit before tax of £588,165. These
amounts are included in the consolidated financial staternents of the Group.
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